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THE TOMORROW TRUST IS A NON-PROFIT ORGANISATION  

CREATED IN 2005 TO SUPPORT ORPHANED AND VULNERABLE  

CHILDREN AND YOUTH. WE DESIGN AND DELIVER WORLD-CLASS  

HOLISTIC EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMMES, SUPPORTING OUR  

BENEFICIARIES, FROM THE PLAYGROUND TO THEIR PROFESSIONS.  

WE WORK WITH THE GOVERNMENT, BUSINESSES, AND ORDINARY  

SOUTH AFRICANS TO REALISE THE VISION OF A SOCIETY WITH  

CONSCIOUS AND HOLISTICALLY EDUCATED LEADERS.
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2020 - 15 YEARS OF EXCELLENCE
THEN AND NOW

2
0
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TERTIARY BURSARY STUDENTS

15 101

ALUMNI

0 317

STAFF

2 16

GAUTENG HOLIDAY & SATURDAY SCHOOL LEARNERS

0 982

WESTERN CAPE HOLIDAY SCHOOL PROGRAMME LEARNERS

00 87

CORPORATE GRADUATES SUPPORTED

0 36

YES YOUTH SUPPORTED

0 40
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TOMORROW TRUST’S HOLISTIC EDUCATION APPROACH  

IS EVIDENCE-BASED, HELPING LEARNERS FIND THEIR IDENTITY, 

MEANING, AND PURPOSE IN LIFE. THIS IN TURN, ASSISTS IN 

INCREASING THEIR CHANCES OF ACADEMIC AND LIFE SUCCESS. 

THROUGH THIS APPROACH, LEARNERS ARE SEEN AS MORE  

THAN ORPHANS OR VULNERABLE YOUTH AND AS MORE THAN  

FUTURE EMPLOYEES OR WORKERS. INSTEAD, A SPACE IS CREATED  

THAT ALLOWS FOR THEM TO REACH THEIR POTENTIAL, THROUGH 

INSTILLING ROOTS OF ACADEMIC PERSISTENCE AND GRIT.  

THIS HELPS LEARNERS FEEL LIKE THEY BELONG IN THE SPACES  

THE INHABIT AND GIVES THEM OPPORTUNITIES TO NURTURE  

THE AGENCY TO TAKE RISKS, EXPERIENCE FAILURES, AND  

SUCCEED IN THEIR ENDEAVOURS DUE TO INTERNAL RESILIENCE.  

WE BELIEVE THAT THIS NATURE OF PERSONAL GROWTH EMERGES 

DUE TO EXTERNAL PRESSURE AND SUPPORT, WHICH LAYS THE 

FOUNDATIONS FOR SKILLS AND EXPERTISE TO BE DEVELOPED. 

TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2020 5



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 20206

AS LOCKDOWN HIT IN MARCH 
2020, I SHARED SOME SIMPLE 
INSTRUCTIONS WITH THE 
TEAM. I COPIED THEM FROM A 
PUBLIC LETTER BY THE CEO OF 
A LARGE MULTINATIONAL BUT 
MEANT EVERY WORD. FIRST, 
LOOK AFTER YOURSELVES, THEN 
YOUR FAMILIES, THEN YOUR 
COMMUNITY, AND THEN YOUR 
COMPANY OR ORGANISATION. 

Little could I know how important that advice was. Our staff 
were incredible in 2020, far exceeding any expectations I 
had of them. So many of our partners drew Tomorrow Trust 
in as part of their community. Going way beyond what was 
expected or asked to make sure our beneficiaries and their 
families got the support they needed. 

This report shares some of the stories from 2020: We 
delivered tens of thousands of packages, from masks and 
santisers, to education material, food, and Christmas gifts, 
and we facilitated hundreds of hours of online classes and 
one-on-one sessions. In addition, we extended our work 
beyond our beneficiaries. We worked with a wide range of 
partners from the Department of Basic Education to the 
South African Bursary Providers Forum to offer guidance at 
the system level. 

This annual report captures a time in our lives that we will 
never forget—a time of fear and uncertainty and a time of 
national and even international solidarity. The sustained 
tension and massive financial impact on our country has 
taken a heavy toll that falls disproportionately on poor and 
vulnerable households. 

JAMES DONALD

As I reflect on 2020, it is clear that learning to know 
ourselves better and understanding strengths and 
weaknesses as individuals and as a team is perhaps the 
most critical focus for an organisation. Our environment is 
volatile, uncertain, complex, and ambiguous. But, together, 
we have weathered this storm, (VUCA) is no longer just a 
glib acronym. 

We know that in this context, we all have our work cut 
out for us. If we do not support our children, orphaned 
and vulnerable learners will be at least three years further 
behind their better-resourced peers. Simultaneously, the 
pandemic’s economic impact will shrink the social sectors’ 
local funding market (Corporate Social Investment and 
BBBEE Social Economic Development) by at least thirty per 
cent for the foreseeable future. 

The good news is that these challenges are not new to us; 
COVID 19 merely accelerated them. At the end of 2018, 
we embarked on our ‘Launching Tomorrow’ strategy. A 
deliberate effort to become more agile and more relevant. 

MESSAGE FROM THE 

CEO
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We listened to our beneficiaries. The values 
that emerged from that process: Growth, 
Compassion and Social justice have guided 
us through this crisis. 

And as our values helped us make difficult 
decisions, the pillars of our strategy kept us 
moving forward. In late 2018, we argued 
that if we could deliver a world-class holistic 
education programme that was evidence-
based, it would drive revenue and reach. We 
argued that if we could advocate for holistic 
education to the demands of the so-called 
4th Industrial Revolution, we could improve 
our programmes and access other sources 
of revenue. 

Throughout 2020, we used these broad 
goals to set our quarterly objectives and the 
key results we would track to measure our 
progress. In addition, the new agility work 
processes we introduced in 2019 (based 
on a self-management technique called 
Getting Things Done and collaborative team 
coordination structure called Holocracy) 
meant we could move our weekly tactical 
meetings online. From there, we could 
iterate on our virtual, in person, and blended 
programming for our learners and students. 

In this Annual Report, you will see examples 
of the objectives we set for ourselves during 
the year. Throughout this report, you will  
see evidence of the remarkable effort our 
team, volunteers, teachers, and beneficiaries 
put in. 

We do this work in the name of you, our donors and partners, and I hope 
you also take a moment to reflect and appreciate how much you have 
achieved. 

Warm regards,

 James
James Donald 
CEO

TOMORROW TRUST – PATHWAYS OF IMPACT

ADVOCATE 
for a holistic education revolution that 

prepares us the 4th Industrial Revolution

GROW 
Revenue and Reach by 10% a year  

while seeking out 10x opportunities 

DELIVER
world leading holistic education 

programmes with proven effectiveness

PATHWAYS 
OF IMPACT

World leading holistic education 
programmes with proven effectiveness

Revenue and Reach by 10% a year  
while seeking out 10x opportunities

For a holistic education revolution that 
prepares us for the 4th Industrial Revolution
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ON BEHALF OF THE TRUSTEES AND 
BENEFICIARIES OF TOMORROW 
TRUST, I WANT TO THANK ALL THE 
STAKEHOLDERS OF TOMORROW 
TRUST FOR BEING PART OF 
TOMORROW TRUST FOR THE YEAR 
THAT WAS, 2020. 

I also want to give a special thanks to the trustees and staff 
of Tomorrow Trust for their dedication to what Tomorrow 
Trust exists and stands for. 

From early February 2020 to the day the office closed in 
December 2020, daily decisions were made and projects 
were undertaken to respond to the COVID 19 pandemic 
so as to ensure that the objectives of Tomorrow Trust 
were achieved. The journey involved among other things, 
late-night trustee calls; engagement with finance risk 
managements consultants in March 2020 (on a pro-bono 
basis); early morning warehouse runs and community visits 
throughout 2020; multiple donor, partner, and network 
meetings; marketing and fundraising campaigns on social 
media; special reports to governments and donors; and 
preparing proposals for COVID response funding. 

No one expected 2020 to be the same as the years prior, 
however, 2020 was just unparalled. While the happenings of 
2020 took a mental toll on everyone, Tomorrow Trust, with 
all the support from Tomorrow Trust community and family, 
was able to respond swiftly and accelerate its work towards 
achieving our stated goals. 

Our strategy is to have world-class programmes that are 
evidence-based and to advocate for holistic education for all 
children. We know that if we do these well, we can grow our 
revenue and reach by ten per cent a year. We have exceeded 

JACK PHALANE

the ten per cent goal over the three years of the strategy so 
far. The disruption of the school activities due to Covid-19 
lockdowns and the fast pace of digital transitions meant that 
we make enormous strides in 2020, which will continue into 
the future. 

2020 was our 15th birthday.  We celebrated our birthday with 
a year-long commitment to our founding purpose of raising 
and distributing funds for the education of orphaned and 
vulnerable children. I think that you will find this report a 
fitting tribute to cap 15 years of living our purpose. 

The year was challenging for Tomorrow Trust. However, 
it brought the staff of Tomorrow Trust closer together as 
everyone worked together to change Tomorrow Trust 
exsisting plans for the year and rapidly figure out how to 
best serve our beneficiaries. 

MESSAGE FROM THE 

CHAIRMAN
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Thank you for your continued commitment 
to growth, compassion and social justice 
in these remarkable times. Thank you for 
staying committed to our work at Tomorrow 
Trust.  Together we are building and shaping 
our beautiful county. 

Ke a leboga.  

 Jack
Jack Phalane 
Chairman
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“THE GREAT POWERS OF THE WORLD MAY HAVE DONE WONDERS  

IN GIVING THE WORLD AN INDUSTRIAL AND MILITARY LOOK,  

BUT THE GREAT GIFT STILL HAS TO COME FROM AFRICA  

– GIVING THE WORLD A MORE HUMAN FACE.”  

– BY STEVE BIKO
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OUR VISION IS FOR A

JUST TOMORROW

A society with conscious and holistically educated leaders; 
where all children, including the orphaned and vulnerable, have 
a real chance of success in academics and life.

AT TOMORROW TRUST, WE PRIDE OURSELVES  
IN THE WAY WE WORK, LEADING BY EXAMPLE  
WITH OUR CORE VALUES OF

GROWTH, COMPASSION  
AND SOCIAL JUSTICE

OUR MISSION IS TO UNLOCK SOUTH AFRICA’S BEST 
TOMORROW, THROUGH HOLISTIC EDUCATION TODAY:

FROM THE PLAYGROUND 
TO PROFESSIONAL

OUR

VISION

OUR

VALUES

OUR

MISSION
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APARTHEID LED TO SUFFERING FOR 
OVER 40 YEARS IN THE EDUCATION 
SECTOR DUE TO SEGREGATION AND 
POOR MANAGEMENT, WHICH ROBBED 
MANY STUDENTS OF OPPORTUNITIES.

Although 1994 brought about a democracy, which would in turn 
suggest an improvement in the education system, this has not 
prevailed successfully.  Inadequate education is a symptom of 
inequality in the South African community. It is littered across the 
education system, characterised by a crumbling infrastructure, 
overcrowded classrooms and a lack of academic resources.  

Numerous orphaned and vulnerable children are not coping at 
school and/or are underachieving in their academics. This is not 
only detrimental to their self-esteem in their formative years, but 
it also poses a threat for their tertiary admittance, and potentially 
getting a job. This is harmful to the South African economy, as the 
unemployment rate skyrockets. 

EDUCATION
 IN SOUTH AFRICA

THROUGH OUR KNOWLEDGE 

THAT HOLISTIC EDUCATION IS 

AN ESSENTIAL INGREDIENT TO 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND 

THE REDUCTION OF POVERTY, 

TOMORROW TRUST IS COMMITTED TO 

ALTERING THE COURSE OF EDUCATION 

IN OUR COUNTRY.
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15 YEARS AGO, WE SUPPORTED 15 
YOUTH WITH ACCESS TO COLLEGES; 
NOW, WE ARE PROVIDING SUPPORT 
TO OVER 1200 BENEFICIARIES!

By supporting the Tomorrow Trust, you put faith in South 
African youth and create an opportunity for students, their 
families, and their communities to build fulfilling futures, 
creating Tomorrow’s Leaders Today! 

We have supported over 600 Grade-12 learners with 
additional educational support on top of their school 
curriculum so that all learning gaps are bridged. 

We have 317 alumni, of whom 80% are employed. Tomorrow 
Trust continues to be a front runner and thought leaders in 
the space of education. 

Education has the ability to improve income disparities 
and secure economic and social progress for those who are 
able to receive it. It is one of the fundamental pillars that can 
facilitate a shift in one’s socio-economic status. Education 
lends itself to improving people’s productivity and creativity, 
evoking entrepreneurial tendencies that could lead to further 
cultivation of the economy, and allowing people to advance 
technologically. 

Through supporting The Tomorrow Trust, one helps facilitate 
a positive learning experience for vulnerable and orphaned 

learners. The South African youth need people who actively 
invest in them so that they also have access to opportunities 
they may not have previously had. South Africa needs people 
who are investing in the youth and inadvertently creating 
opportunities for all communities. 

Supporting The Tomorrow Trust means actively 
contributing to the greater good of South Africa through 
aiding in the creation of Conscious Leaders of Tomorrow 
and helping bridge educational disparities so that all South 
African learners are afforded the same opportunities. 

 WHY

INVEST
 IN TOMORROW TRUST

 

OUR SUSTAINABLE IMPACT 
 TOMORROW TRUST TURNS 15! 



The Tomorrow Trust supports orphaned and vulnerable 
children and youth to achieve their educational goals, 
from their earliest years until they are alumni.

Tomorrow Trust has a long-standing relationship with the 
South African Department of Social Development. They 
provide us with funded NPO’s who assist us in selecting our 
children in the Junior and Senior Programme. Some of our 
children are also sourced from township school feeding 
schemes. In our Tertiary Programme, students are selected 
from an application process and are considered based 
on financial status and career sustainability highlighting 
perseverance and potential as key components.

 TOMORROW TRUST

STUDENTS

TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 202014
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 TOMORROW TRUST

GEOGRAPHICAL 
FOOTPRINT

LIMPOPO

GAUTENG

MPUMALANGA

KWAZULU-
NATAL

EASTERN CAPE

WESTERN CAPE

NORTHERN CAPE

FREE STATE

NORTH-WEST
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Tomorrow Trust’s Holistic Educational Programmes include 
academic, psycho-social, career, and digital intelligence 
development to orphaned and vulnerable children and 
youth, from the playground to their professions.

The following sections outline the programmes that enable 
beneficiaries to become thriving, conscious leaders of 
Tomorrow. 

 WHAT WE

DO

Junior Holiday 
School Programme 

accommodating  
Grade R- 7

Tertiary Programme 
accommodating 

tertiary students in 
various fields

Senior Saturday 
and Holiday 

School Programme 
accommodating  

Grade 8-12

Alumni  
Programme
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HOLIDAY AND 
SATURDAY SCHOOL 
PROGRAMME

The Holiday and Saturday School Programme provides 
supplementary educational support that builds the 
academic advancements, social emotional attributes, 
career enlightenment, and digital competencies during 
the Holiday period and on Saturdays to the Grade R to 
Grade 12 learners.

TOMORROW TRUST HOLIDAY AND SATURDAY 
SCHOOL PROGRAMMES ARE DIVIDED INTO:
• ECD (Grade R)
• Foundation Phase (Grade 1- 3)
• Intermediate Phase (Grade 4- 7)
• Senior Phase (Grade 8- 12)

The Holiday and Saturday School Programmes provide a safe 
learning environment where learners are guaranteed three 
nutritious meals, including breakfast, snacks, a cooked lunch 
during their attendance. 

Learners are also safely transport to the host venues 
whereby Tomorrow Trust facilitates the various programmes. 

Tomorrow Trust needs to transport learners to venues 
because it is more conducive to their learning. In addition, 
it offers a new environment away from the poverty and 
struggles they experience at home. Tomorrow Trust aims to 
inspire learners to break free from their home environments 
and become driven in growing and developing themselves 
academically.

Each learner who participates in the Holiday and Saturday 
School Programme receives a stationery pack which 
includes basic materials such as pens, pencils, a scientific 
calculator, and a math set, which contributes to their 

learning. We also include study material and study guides to 
support teaching and resources that enhance class activities. 
Within the programme, we aim to include psycho-social 
workshops, career assessments, experiences, digital literacy, 
and competencies. 

Tomorrow Trust has partnered with the Gauteng 
Department of Social Development to provide their 
registered NGO with an opportunity to participate in 
the Tomorrow Trust Junior Holiday and Saturday School 
Programme. This is a sustainable model to break the cycle of 
poverty and encourage orphaned and vulnerable children 
to reach their full potential.

Department of Social Development registered NGOs that 
Tomorrow Trust works with:
• PUSH – Preserve Until Something Happens
• Crystal Fountain
• Nanga Vhuthilo 
• Tsoga Sechaba Community Project
• Klipspruit West Family Centre
• Khayalethu Family Crisis Centre
• Sizanani Home Based Care
• Abangani Enkosini

These Programmes service the following Provinces:
1. Gauteng: 902 learners
2. Western Cape: 80 learners

 PROGRAMMES

BEFORE COVID-19

902

80
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81

19

Watching our learners complete their Grade 12 National 
Senior Certificate and graduate from school is an 
incredibly rewarding moment, especially as they are 
now ready to enter into the Tertiary space. Although our 
Tertiary programme offers partial and full bursaries to 
students completing various degrees at university, our 
goal is to create independent, problem-solving, conscious 
young adults, who will enter the workplace as self-reliant 
individuals ready to lead a successful life.

in alignment with our organisations’ values of Compassion, 
Growth and Social Justice, we aim to reinforce our 
teachings through communication, accountability and 
self-awareness. This is achieved through on-going support 
with our in-house Psychologists, monthly workshops, 
engagement sessions, career days, and various activities 
that the students experience throughout their time with 
Tomorrow Trust.

At Tomorrow Trust we aim to create a safe space and family 
environment, where our students can learn, fail, and grow 
without judgement, prejudice or fear. We believe that 
success is not linear, and walk our students’ path with them 
as they navigate the complexities of life as a university 
student and young adult.

Being part of our Tertiary Programme allows students to 
commit and invest in their own self-development and 
growth, helping them achieve their true full potential both 
academically and personally.

WHAT MAKES OUR TERTIARY PROGRAMME UNIQUE?

We spot potential in worthy South African youth who 
deserve an opportunity to unlock their full potential 
through Tertiary education.
• Our aim is to create well-rounded, independent, and self-

sustainable leaders of tomorrow through an integrated 
academic, career, and psycho-social programme.

• Individually tailored support for our students provided by 
our in-house Psychologists – we do not have a ‘one shoe 
fits all’ policy.

• Successfully manage and facilitate their transitions 
through the higher education space.

• Work readiness programmes preparing students for the 
next chapter in their professional career.

Tomorrow Trust supported 101 students in 2020. These 
learners were pursuing various disciplines (e.g) Commerce, 
Engineering, Law and Computer Science), across various 
universities (e.g) University of the Witwatersrand, University 
of Cape Town and Maharishi Institute).

TERTIARY 
PROGRAMME

This Programme services the following Provinces:
1. Gauteng: 81 students
2. Western Cape: 19 students
3. Eastern Cape: 1 student

1

PSYCHOSOCIAL
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ALUMNI 
PROGRAMME

international alumni continue to interact 
with Tomorrow Trust from Sweden, Italy, 
Saudi Arabia, and the United Kingdom

total alumni participate 
from all population 

demographics:

5
317

Black WhiteColoured Indian

95%
2% 2% 1%

In 2011, we created The Tomorrow Trust Alumni 
Programme to foster a fellowship of individuals 
who share common organizational interests whilst 
simultaneously enabling them to maintain close ties with 

the organisation. The Alumni Network has a committee 
consisting of 6 volunteers who give their insight and 
expertise to growing Tomorrow Trust. 

The Alumni have financially contributed over 1 500 000 
000 to the Tomorrow Trust since 2010 to support learners 
who do not have sponosors. Their contributions have grown 
by 35% from 2019 into 2020.
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Some are in media, fashion, research, pharmacology, and 
logistics, while a few work outside South Africa in countries 
like China, Italy and Saudi Arabia. It is incredible to have 
our graduates pursue business ventures, and those that 
have taken this route are making great waves in the 
entrepreneurial space in South Africa. 

GENDER OF GRADUATES

Male Female
45% 55%

79% 3%
GROWTH IN GRADUATES

Alumni in 2019

282
Alumni in 2020

317

12.41% of alumni are 
employed

of alumni are 
studying further

Having completed their qualifications, many graduates 
take internships with major companies that often lead 
to full-time employment. Our graduates work in various 
companies such as PWC, Nedbank, IQ Business, Ernest & 
Young, Leratong Hospital, Komatsu, Murray & Roberts, 
Burgess plumbing, and more.



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 202022

WE TAKE PRIDE IN OUR ALUMNI AND WANT 

TO RELISH IN THEIR ACCOMPLISHMENTS. 

THROUGH HARD WORK, PERSEVERANCE, 

AND DETERMINATION, GRADUATES HAVE 

POSITIVELY CHANGED AND CONTINUE TO 

CHANGE THEIR LIVES AND THOSE OF THEIR 

FAMILIES.

THEIR SUCCESS IS A REFLECTION OF OUR 

PURSUIT TO CHANGE STORIES WITH A 

HOLISTIC EDUCATION AND TRULY CREATE 

CONSCIOUS LEADERS OF TOMORROW. 

TSHEPO LEPOTE

MESSAGE FROM THE 

ALUMNI 
CHAIRMAN

My experience as Chairperson of the Tomorrow Trust Alumni 
has been fascinating as it has given me an opportunity 
to conceptualize the functioning of a fledgling Alumni 
grouping, developing committees which will form the 
backdrop of the programme and the facilitation of 
sustainable operations including the creation of synergies 
between Alumni and the Head-Office. This has been 
achieved with a myriad of challenges experienced which 
continue to linger but the necessary knowledge amassed 
with the comprehension of better ways to manoeuvre in 
future. The ultimate objective of the group is mainly to play 
an active role in the future of the organisation and assist in 
achieving organisational objectives.

Another milestone achieved was the opportunity to sit on 
the main Board of the organisation as a Trustee (as per my 
responsibility of being a chairperson and representative of 
the Alumni). It has been an intimidating and yet invigorating 
environment surrounded by captains of Industry (JSE listed 
Execs), Public Sector champions and individuals with an 
entrepreneurial flair, which has elevated my thinking and 
improved my business acumen considerably..

What stands out the most about this experience is the 
opportunity to evaluate and interrogate the strategic 
thinking and direction presented by the management team 
on the future of the organisation, the approval of budgets 
through rigorous processes, and the signing off of annual 
financial statements.

It’s been a journey well received and that which has served 
as a learning phase for my other board sittings drawing from 
the extensive experience gained.

As we navigate and traverse the unfamiliar territories 
brought by COVID, change is the only constant in this 
learning process. No better time exists than now for the 
creation of nimble and flexible organisations of the future. 

Tshepo Lepote 
Tomorrow Trust Alumni Chairperson
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TOMORROW TRUST 
HOLISTIC FRAMEWORK

ACADEMIC ADVANCEMENT: 
• Facilitate the successful transition 

between developmental and 
academic stages of the learner with 
improved results. 

• Ensure that each learner passed each 
grade with averages above 50%.

• Learners are actively participating in 
programmes.

CAREER ENLIGHTENMENT:
• Assist learners in understanding the career paths 

they have selected and how they align with 
their abilities, personality, interests and level of 
preparedness. 

• We want a learner to emerge with a strong sense 
of self, a feeling on independence, and a wealth 
of knowledge on various careers. 

• A learner who has a clear idea of what their 
role will be in society and how they will want to 
contribute to the SA economy.

SOCIAL EMOTIONAL ATTRIBUTES: 
• Having a child who freely explores through play and is 

confident in facing challenges and making choices.
• A learner who demonstrates self-confidence and 

independence and can accomplish tasks with ease.
• A learner who has a positive disposition, shows 

personal exploration, matured identity and sexual 
maturity, that has a conscious awareness of oneself 
and the environment they are in.

DIGITAL COMPETENCIES: 
• Enhance the academic learning of the 

child whilst being exposed to digital 
intelligence and programmes to prepare 
them for the 4th Industrial revolutions and 
skills needed for jobs of the future.

• SHIFT (digital Skills, Holism and 
Innovation for Tomorrow) contributes 
to building digital citizens who are 
proficient and capacitated in robotics, 
coding, and digital intelligence. 

• Using digital platforms (Siyavula) to 
enhance academic skills in Mathematics 
and Physical Science.

Tomorrow Trust’s Holistic Framework is aligned to academic 
theories that help guide us in developing our beneficiaries 
holistically. Below, we have highlighted the overall 
objectives of how we contribute to the holistic development 
of each beneficiary. 

Tomorrow Trust focuses on core elements within Academics. 
Psycho-social attributes, career enlightenment, and digital 
competencies contribute to our vision of creating Conscious 
Leaders of Tomorrow.

TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 202024
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“COVID-19 HAS INTENSIFIED AND EXAGGERATED FAULT LINES  

IN CONTEMPORARY SOCIETIES, REVEALING BACK TO US  

OUR WAYS OF DEALING WITH INEQUALITY.”  

 

– JULIAN SEFTON-GREEN,  

UNESCO FUTURES OF EDUCATION IDEAS LAB



On 31 December 2019, the World Health Organization 
(WHO) reported a cluster of pneumonia cases in Wuhan City, 
China. Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome Coronavirus 2 
(SARS-CoV-2), which is now referred to as the ‘Coronavirus 
Disease 2019’ (COVID-19) was confirmed as the causative 
agent. As of the end of 2020, the virus has now spread to 
more than 100 countries, including South Africa.

South African President, Cyril Ramaphosa, declared the 
COVID-19 virus a National State of Disaster on 15 March 
2020 and announced a myriad of measures that halted 
operations in the country. These measures consisted of 
harsh travel restrictions and the closure of schools as of 18 
March 2020. 

By 27 March 2020, South Africa was under a hard lockdown. 
Throughout 2020, the measures of restrictions shifted in 
accordance to the rates of infection. By the end of 2020, 
South Africa had gone through its second wave of COVID-19 
and had a total of 792 299 cases. 

COVID-19
A GLOBAL PANDEMIC
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THOUGH MANY GOVERNMENTS 
MADE THE DECISION TO 
TEMPORARILY CLOSE SCHOOLS TO 
MITIGATE THE RISK OF SPREADING 
COVID-19 AMONG STUDENTS, 
SOUTH AFRICAN SCHOOLS WERE 
CLOSED INDEFINITELY (MARCH 
2020-AUGUST 2020), WITH A 
FOCUS ON GRADE-SPECIFIC 
LEARNING.

 
As it stands, Grades 4, 5, 8, and 9 had lost the most 
schooling time, and Grades 7 and 12 had lost the least. The 
instances that are unaccounted for, however, are rotational 
timetabling, absent teachers, parents etc., which indicates 
that a lot more school time was lost. Furthermore, many 
schools at the end of the school year closed earlier than 
expected. Schools that were already overcrowded and 
under-resourced lost more days because of social distancing 
and rotational adjustments. The result was that existing 
inequities were deepened. It is estimated that some 
schools lost as much as 69% of school days. 

Before COVID-19, many children from township 
communities were proven to be 2 grades behind their 
peers in suburban schools. The limited access to education 
in 2020 due to schools closing for the majority of the year 
leaves us wondering about the long term effect of COVID on 
education, especially accounting for how dire the existing 
educational disparities were.

The curriculum was stripped by 30%. Many educators 
battled to balance what needed to be taught, passing 
incompetent learners to the next grade. The ripple effect 
of this is going to be disastrous. Many children will not 
have the skills required to advance within their schooling 
career, leaving them no choice but to drop out of school 
and indeed not accessing their full potential. We will have 
another lost generation of children due to this pandemic.

The digital divide has deepened, showing how inequality is 
rife amongst the poor and privileged. We have many learners 
with potential in township communities that will never thrive 
due to the lack of access and resources needed to continue 
their learning. Children from disadvantaged areas are the 
ones who stand to lose the most. With the schools being 
closed for the majority of the year, children will face long-term 
effects on their learning ability. 

This may be as simple as forgetting the skills they had acquired 
before the lockdown to missing essential foundations in 
concepts developed over the years, to dropping out of school 
later on. 

This will result in higher unemployment rates with South 
Africa unemployment rate at 28.48% at the end of 2020. This 
learning crisis will undoubtedly worsen future job markets 
with little or scarcity of essential skills to offer to grow our 
economy.

 
ORGANISATIONAL SUSTAINABILITY  
DURING COVID-19

As an organisation, Tomorrow Trust has taken steps to 
ensure our organisational sustainability, especially during 
COVID-19:

1. From the board’s perspective, we have reduced our overall 
budget by 13% in 2020. 

2. Established Monthly Board meetings to ensure our budget 
and expenditure is re-purposed and allocated correctly.

3. Tomorrow Trust kept our staff component with 16 full time 
Team members working remotely.

4. Tomorrow Trust extended our working period in December 
to allow for us to extend our support to the community 
and make up for precious time lost during the lockdown.

5. Tomorrow Trust applied for TERS and was able to make 
provision over a 3 month period.

6. Tomorrow Trust raised R2.5 million additional funding 
during COVID-19 that assisted with direct COVID-19 relief 
items and support.

7. We secured 95% of our partner commitments for 2020.

 COVID 19 PANDEMIC

IMPACTING EDUCATION
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GAUTENG COVID-19 
RESPONSE

NUMBER OF LEARNERS: 606

AREAS LEARNERS ARE FROM: 

 
 

In Gauteng we implemented monthly drop-off deliveries 
whereby our focus was to provide the academic, psycho-
social and basic support during the pandemic. The monthly 
drop-off started at the end of April and continued until mid-
December 2020. 

WE PROVIDED A MONTHLY DROP-OFF THAT 
CONSISTED OF THE FOLLOWING:
• Educational material to support CAPS aligned curriculum 

learning.
• Psycho-social worksheets were created and distributed 

to each junior household, focusing on themes like 
general COVID-19 information, self-esteem, regulating 
and expressing emotions, developing social interactions, 
understanding and developing resilience, perspective 
taking and gratitude. 

Tembisa
Diepsloot 
Alexandra
Soweto

GAUTENG
JOHANNESBURG

PRETORIA

Educational  
materials distributed  

in 2020

Food parcels and 
vouchers delivered  

to households

Hygiene packs 
delivered

COVID-19 
face masks  
provided

8 484 11 721 4 242 11 784

JUNIOR 
PROGRAMME

of households amongst our 
juniors had phones, however 
parents solely had access.85%

15%

95%

of our junior learners 
indicated having their own 
personal phones.

of households indicated 
that they didn’t have access 
to data.
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• Monthly food parcels were delivered to the communities.
• Monthly educational resources to support Fun through 

Play such as Puzzles, Six Bricks, story books, puzzles, 
Educational tools and resources.

• Hygiene packs to assist the households with prevention 
of the spread of COVID-19.

• COVID-19 face masks for beneficiary households.
• Full Stationery packs, including pens, pencils, erasers, 

sharpeners, crayons and colouring pencils.
• Christmas gifts and inspirational work notes were 

provided in December. Each parent and learner needed 
to sign each month when collecting their items. This 
provided us with an indication of how many learners we 
had reached.

IN ADDITION, TOMORROW TRUST SUPPORTED THE 
JUNIOR PROGRAMME IN THE FOLLOWING WAYS:
• Created a Facebook page to engage with our 

communities, which currently has 217 members.
• Held conversations and workshops within the 

community with parents.
• Implemented a first-of-its-kind counselling hotline 

that provides direct counselling support reaching four 
communities and over 1200 families.

Stationery packs  
were distributed 

Monthly Educational 
Resource items 

provided 

Santa Shoeboxes  
were provided to  

our learners

Overall collection  
rate of monthly  

drop-off

606 4 242 606 95%
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WESTERN CAPE  
COVID-19 RESPONSE

NUMBER OF LEARNERS: 52 

AREAS LEARNERS ARE FROM: 

 

Monthly drop off deliveries were created and distributed 
to each junior household, focusing on themes like 
general COVID-19 information, self-esteem, regulating 
and expressing emotions, developing social interactions, 
understanding and developing resilience, perspective taking, 
and gratitude. We distributed 8 484 worksheets in 2020.

We are fortunate to have all our Junior learners coming from 
Mseki Primary School – thus, we got the opportunity to work 
closely with the school to provide supplementary support to 
the junior learners by offering academic sessions on Fridays 
to reinforce literacy, numeracy and writing skills. 

WE PROVIDED A MONTHLY DROP-OFF THAT 
CONSISTED OF THE FOLLOWING:
• Educational material to support CAPS aligned curriculum 

learning.
• Psycho-social worksheet were created and distributed to 

each junior household. 
• Monthly food parcels delivered to the communities
• Full Stationery packs and resources provided.
• Provided Friday sessions for all junior learners. The 

overall attendance of these sessions was 68%
• Monthly educational resources to support Fun through 

Play such as puzzles, Six Bricks, story books, educational 
tools and resources.

• Hygiene packs to assist the households with prevention 
of the spread of COVID-19.

• Provided face masks for households.
• Christmas gifts and inspirational work notes were 

provided. Each parent and learner needed to sign each 
month when collecting their items. This provided us with 
an indication of how many learners we had reached.

Educational  
materials distributed  

in 2020

Food vouchers were 
distributed to the 

communities

Hygiene packs 
delivered

COVID-19 
face masks  
provided

1 680 1 500 240 1 200

Gugulethu 
Nyanga 
Crossroads 
Philippi 
Khayelitsha 

WESTERN 
CAPECAPE TOWN
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IN ADDITION, TOMORROW TRUST SUPPORTED THE 
JUNIOR PROGRAMME IN THE FOLLOWING WAYS:
• 170 winter attire like beanies, and scarves provide to our 

learners.
• Held monthly conversations and meetings with parents. 

We discussed mental well-being during COVID19 and 
how to ensure the safety of the children during this 
pandemic.

Stationery packs  
were distributed 

Monthly Educational 
Resource items 

provided 

Santa Shoeboxes  
were provided to  

our learners

Overall collection  
rate of monthly  

drop-off

305 1 680 97 88%

Dear teacher, I am Ahlume’s parent. 

I would like to say thank you 

very much to you and Tomorrow 

Trust for supporting my child 

and my family. You really helped 

me to cope during this hard time 

through dealing with my child’s 

schoolwork. He and his sibling 

were able to share some of the stuff 

that we received from you.

– Ahlume Khwatshube’s parent

Dear Tomorrow Trust

My name is Phumzile Zantsi. I am 

Kungawo Zantsi’s mother. He’s a  

learner at Mseki Primary, Gugulethu 

Cape Town. I thank you for the 

support that you are giving us.  

I have just received the goodies and 

the voucher. I am very grateful and 

I appreciate what you doing for us. 

Once again, thank you very much.

– Phumzile Zantsi, Parent
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GAUTENG COVID-19 
RESPONSE

Grade 8-12
NUMBER OF LEARNERS: 367 

AREAS LEARNERS ARE FROM: 

 

Guided by our Accessibility Study, the Senior Holiday and 
Saturday School Programme was adjusted to monthly 
deliveries and connecting to our learners through 
WhatsApp webinars and/or Zoom classes. 

WE PROVIDED A MONTHLY DROP-OFF THAT 
CONSISTED OF THE FOLLOWING:
• Educational material to support CAPS aligned curriculum 

learning to Grade 8 to 12.
• Psycho-social worksheets were created and distributed 

to each junior household that focused on themes such 
as General COVID-19 information, self esteem, regulating 
emotions, expressing emotions, developing social 
interactions, understanding and developing resilience, 
perspective taking and gratitude. 2569 Psycho-social 
worksheets were distributed.

• Monthly food parcels delivered to senior communities.
• Monthly Educational Resources to support Fun through 

Play such as Six Bricks, story books, puzzles, Educational 
tools and resources.

• Hygiene packs to assist the households with prevention 
of the spread of COVID-19.

• Provided COVID-19 face masks to senior households..
• Full Stationery packs provided. 367 Packs were 

distributed that included pens, pencils, erasers, 
sharpeners, crayons and colouring pencils.

• Christmas gifts and inspirational work notes were 
provided to senior learners at the end of the year. Each 
parent and learner needed to sign each month when 
collecting their items. This provided us with an indication 
of how many learners we had reached. 

Tembisa 
Diepsloot 
Alexandra 
Daveyton 
Soweto

Educational  
materials distributed  

in 2020

Food vouchers were 
distributed to the 
senior households

Hygiene packs 
delivered

COVID-19 
face masks  
provided

2 569 2 583 2 215 5 505

SENIOR 
PROGRAMME

GAUTENG
JOHANNESBURG

PRETORIA
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IN ADDITION, TOMORROW TRUST SUPPORTED THE 
SENIOR PROGRAMME IN THE FOLLOWING WAYS:
• All Grade 10,11 and 12 learners have received LTE devices 

to connect.
• Implemented an online mentorship programme called 

“Seeds in Nature Mentorships Programme” with the 
inclusion of 15 mentors.

• Implemented a first-of-its-kind counselling hotline that 
provides direct counselling support to learners and 
households.

• Hosted 8 career days virtually to 367 senior learners. 
Implementation of 16 in-depth career sessions – 2 hour 
sessions through WhatsApp and Zoom sessions for  
Grade 9 to Grade 12.

Data packs provided 
to Educators and 

Learners

Monthly Educational 
Resource items 

provided 

Saturday school  
Zoom classes for  

Grade 10-12

Overall collection  
rate of monthly  

drop-off

675 2 21540 90%
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GRADE 8 &9 

Results released by TIMSS (Trends in International 
Mathematics and Science Study) at Grade 9 level indicate 
that the national average score for South Africa is 372 
points for Mathematics (38th out of 39 countries) and 358 
points for Science (last position).

It is evident that Grade 9 learners were not equipped with 
the foundations of Mathematics and English to enable them 
to pass with a good mark even before COVID-19.

it is notable that even before the pandemic, 47% of South 
African learners dropped out of school at the end of Grade 
9. The Holiday and Saturday School Programme’s intention, 
is to have all Grade 9 learners’ progress to Grade 10 with 
good results, and for all of them to choose STEM subjects, 
specifically Pure Mathematics, as opposed to Mathematics 
Literacy.

The Holiday and Saturday School Programme has a 95% 
retention rate of Grade 8 learners moving to Grade 9, whilst 
Grade 9 moving to Grade 10 retention rate is 80%. In light 
of COVID-19, Tomorrow Trust was not able to conduct pre- 
and post-assessments. In 2020, we compared Tomorrow 
Trust learners against their school going peers to see how 
the support has assisted their learning during this time.

COMPARISON GRAPH OF TERM 4 SCHOOL RESULTS OF 
GRADES 8 AND 9 LEARNERS PARTICIPATING IN THE 
TOMORROW TRUST SENIOR PROGRAMME, AGAINST 

LEARNERS WHO DO NOT RECEIVE ADDITIONAL SUPPORT

Tomorrow Trust 
Participating Learners

Non-Participating 
Learners

61%
58%

44%
35%

Grade 8 Grade 9

– MATHEMATICS

64% 60%

46%
40%

Grade 8 Grade 9

– GROUP AVERAGE

67% 63%

51%
49%

Grade 8 Grade 9

– ENGLISH

 PERFORMANCE

 ANALYSIS
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COMPARISON GRAPH OF TERM 4 SCHOOL RESULTS OF GRADE 
10 AND 11 LEARNERS PARTICIPATING IN THE TOMORROW 

TRUST SENIOR PROGRAMME, AGAINST LEARNERS WHO DO 
NOT RECEIVING ADDITIONAL SUPPORT

GRADE 10 AND 11 

The Senior Saturday and Holiday School Programme 
has shown the quality and commitment to the academic 
outcome of learner’s results. Tomorrow Trust believes in 
accessing the potential in every child and ensuring they 
pass Grade 12 with improved marks despite the various 
challenges they face. This in turn develops a well-rounded 
competent individual who can positively contribute to 
the South African economy by either accessing further 
education, employment or venture into entrepreneurship. 

In light of COVID-19, Tomorrow Trust was not able to 
conduct pre and post assessments. We have compared 
Tomorrow Trust learners against their school going peers to 
see how the support has assisted their learning during this 
time.

Tomorrow Trust 
Participating Learners

Non-Participating 
Learners

45%

56%

31% 35%

Grade 10 Grade 11

58% 59%

37%
43%

Grade 10 Grade 11

61%
58%

47%
55%

Grade 10 Grade 11

– MATHEMATICS

– GROUP AVERAGE

– ENGLISH
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2020 was an unprecedented year, with many challenges 
faced that affected every facet of human life. With limited 
schooling and a new way of learning, Grade 12’s had an 
enormous task at hand – completing their Senior National 
Certificate with good results.

In the midst of COVID-19, our Grade 12’s weathered the 
storm, and we are proud to announce that Tomorrow Trust 
2020 Grade 12 cohort achieved a 95% Pass rate compared 
to a National Pass rate of 76.2%.

Collectively, we obtained 70% Bachelor Pass (74% being 
Female learners), whilst the National average for a Bachelor 
Pass was 36.4%, proving that the Tomorrow Trust’s additional 
support substantially assisted these learners. 

By the end of their final year at school in 2020, the 
performance of Grade 12 learners had improved to a group 
average of 60%, with English at 70% and Mathematics  
at 52%.

When comparing Tomorrow Trust performance, 
specifically in one of the countries toughest subjects 
Mathematics and Physical Sciences, with the National 
Senior Certificate Outcomes, we have achieved the 
following:

GAUTENG CLASS OF 2020 
NATIONAL SENIOR CERTIFICATE ACHIEVEMENTS

Grade 12 learners 
directly impacted  
over 10 years by 
Tomorrow Trust

of Grade 12 learners 
achieved a bachelor 

pass at Tomorrow  
Trust over 10 years

766 76%

80%

81%

of Tomorrow Trust 
learners achieved 
30% and more in 
Mathematics

of Tomorrow Trust 
learners achieved 
30% and more in 
Physical Sciences

In comparison to 53.8% of learners 
nationally achieving 30% and more 

in Mathematics.

Compared to 65% of learners 
nationally achieving 30% and more 

in Physical Sciences.

Of the 53.8% of National learners, only  
14% achieved 60% and more in Mathematics.

Of the 65% of National Learners, only 15% 
achieved 60% and more in Physical Sciences 
– this indicated a massive problem looming 

within this subject.
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Group average  
for the Gauteng  

class of 2021

60%
Group average  

for English

70%
Group average  

for Mathematics

52%
of the Gauteng class

of 2021 obtained  
passed matric

95%



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 202038

WESTERN CAPE 
COVID-19 RESPONSE

Grade 7 and 8
NUMBER OF LEARNERS: 30 

AREAS LEARNERS ARE FROM: 

 

With the inclusion of a Programme lead within the Western 
Cape, we were able to facilitate face-to-face programmes 
focused on academic assistance and building emotional tool 
kits for our children. 

WE PROVIDED A MONTHLY DROP-OFF THAT 
CONSISTED OF THE FOLLOWING:
• Educational material to support CAPS aligned curriculum 

learning to Grade 8 to 12.
• Psycho-social worksheets were created and distributed 

to each junior household that focused on themes such 
as General COVID-19 information, self esteem, regulating 
emotions, expressing emotions, developing social 
interactions, understanding and developing resilience, 
perspective taking and gratitude. 210 Psycho-social 
worksheets were distributed.

• Monthly food parcels delivered to senior communities.
• Monthly Educational Resources to support Fun through 

Play such as Six Bricks, story books, puzzles, Educational 
tools and resources.

• Hygiene packs to assist the households with prevention 
of the spread of COVID-19.

• Provided COVID-19 face masks to senior households.
• Stationery packs were distributed that included pens, 

pencils, erasers, sharpeners, crayons and colouring 
pencils.

• Christmas gifts and inspirational work notes were 
provided to each senior learners. Each parent and learner 
needed to sign each month when collecting their items. 
This provided us with an indication of how many learners 
we had reached.

Educational  
materials distributed  

in 2020

Food vouchers were 
distributed to the 
senior households

Hygiene packs 
delivered

COVID-19 
face masks  
provided

210 600 210 1 050

SENIOR 
PROGRAMME

Gugulethu 
Nyanga 
Crossroads 
Philippi 
Khayelitsha 

WESTERN 
CAPECAPE TOWN
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IN ADDITION, TOMORROW TRUST SUPPORTED THE 
SENIOR PROGRAMME IN THE FOLLOWING WAYS:
• We ran 45 academic classes to all our senior learners 

throughout 2020.
• Implementation of a leadership Programme called 

Tomorrow Leaders In Training and provided workshops 
focused on:  identity (who you are), leadership, self 
confidence, goal setting, time management, critical 
thinking, study guide, sympathy vs empathy, emotional 

intelligence, self-leadership and conflict resolution.
• Implement a first-of-its-kind counselling hotline that 

provides direct counselling support to learners and 
households.

Towards the end of the year, we conducted an internal 
assessment for English and Mathematics and the average 
mark for Grade 8: Mathematics was 48% and for English 
64% & Grade 7 Mathematics 56% and English 63%.

of Grade 7 
progressed to Grade 
8 at the end of 2020

Monthly Educational 
Resource items 

provided 

Overall collection  
rate of monthly  

drop-off

Attendance rate  
for seniors 

100%210 94%93.5%
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#CHANGE A STORY
HOLIDAY & SATURDAY SCHOOL PROGRAMME

TSHEGOFATSO is a young boy who resides in 
Tembisa.

He has been with Tomorrow Trust since 2012, when 
he was in Grade 1. With the support of the Tomorrow 
Trust, Tshegofatso has now completed his primary 
schooling with an average of 80%.

The Junior Holiday and Saturday School Programme 
provided a strong foundation in academic, and 
psycho-social development for him. In 2020, 
Tshegofatso joined the Tomorrow Trust Senior Grade 
8 Saturday and Holiday School Programme. In 2020, 
he ended up missing 69% of his school year due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic. Luckily for Tshegofatso 
and his strong foundation in primary school, he was 
able to navigate through the year with results that 
exceeded those of this peers.

Tshegofasto achieved 60% for mathematics whilst 
his peers averaged 38%. In English, Tshegofasto 
achieved 69% whilst his peers at his home school 
averaged an average of 57%.

This is a clear indication that interventions like 
Tomorrow Trust do enable learners to better their 
academic performance and thrive at school.



 LETTERS

OF THANKS

COVID-19 LOCKDOWN IMPACT ON MARCH

The COVID-19 pandemic really surprised the whole world, because everyone was expecting that 2020 
would be the most gracious and spontaneous year ever, but as human beings we can’t predict life.

As learners didn’t get their chance to learn or study well, be able to go to school as normal, we had to go back home 
and be locked up, while we not continuing with our school work. When the lockdown was announced in March 2020, I 
felt very doomed. My plans for 2020 were ruined. I had to stay at home and forget about my school academics.

As some of us staying at home everyday and do nothing is not what we used to. We had to adapt to the new normal 
very quick. I am a very hands on person, hard working, adventurous and curious so I couldn’t be that adventurous 
person stuck at one place! I have to be outdoors. Many families became poor because some family members got 
retrenched from work. The SA economy lost a lot of money as companies shut down due to the regulations of 
COVID-19.

The support we got from Tomorrow Trust really helped us a lot, in which we got vouchers, food parcels, worksheets, 
the LAPTOP and other packages. 

Speaking from my side of the story, the food parcels really helped my family because my parents got retrenched from 
work for months but luckily they got their jobs back. The worksheets helped me to study further, continue focusing on 
my academics and “secure the bag” for my final year marks.

As we in the 4th industrial revolution things have changed ‘Technology’ is now the biggest thing that is taking part 
in the world and due to COVID-19 regulations it gave it more power ‘advantage’ to be the popular system used. The 
learning system changed, we started learning online; we learners had to adapt to the new normal learning system. 
Tomorrow Trust helped me to learn and adapt as we were given the LAPTOPS and I appreciate that a lot as my IT skills 
developed a lot. 

Tomorrow Trust always gave us hope that we can excel in everything as along we stay true to ourselves, keep our 
eyes on the goal and always take care of ourselves and that will result good products to our lives. As I felt very 
overwhelmed when I went back to school in the mid-year but I kept on encouraging myself in positivity. 

I feel very appreciated to be part of Tomorrow Trust family. My family and I would like to thank you for being there for 
us through hard times and always supporting us.

THANK YOU!

Keamogetswe Ngubeni GRADE 9
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Dear Tomorrow trust

Greetings to the people of Tomorrow Trust. I wrote this letter to appreciate the lot of things you have 
done for me so far, this letter is dedicated to you. Since I started attending Tomorrow Trust nothing 
became a mess but all well Tomorrow Trust has done a lot for me, it was hard before but now its all well.

Since lockdown started nothing was good and before lockdown, school was good and enjoyable and I could see that 
I had potential in my school work. To be honest, this virus has affected me mentally because I can see that something 
is different in me, but because there is Tomorrow Trust in my life my affection is healed so fast and smooth. Tomorrow 
Trust provided a lot for me meaning with food parcels, vouchers that I used to buy stuff I need with. Tomorrow Trust 
made me feel like I am in a big caring and loving family and in a welcoming family.

Most important Tomorrow Trust gave me a laptop which no one could just give it to me but Tomorrow Trust did it. I 
could see that this programme wants a successful future for me and I also want one, and also SIM cards with a lot of 
data for Zoom classes because we couldn’t go to school.

I would like to give a special thanks to my sponsors, coordinators, teachers and our students for helping me go 
through this tough time, and taking your time to come and show me right path to success. Therefore I am looking 
forward to make you all proud of me as they did for me.

Keamogetswe Matjokotja GRADE 9

Dear Tomorrow Trust

I would like to the Tomorrow Trust organization for being with us through this Nationwide lockdown. 
During this Nationwide lockdown, Tomorrow Trust has helped us with vouchers that have helped us 
through this hard and tough situation since a lot of our family members have been retrenched from 

their jobs. Tomorrow Trust has been there for us. Regarding school issues, they offered us fully loaded data SIM cards 
and laptops, which helped us to work and attend online classes.

Comparing my previous marks with my recent marks, I’m so proud due to the work of the Tomorrow Trust teachers. I’m 
so very thankful to have them as our understanding and patient teachers. I’m happy to be part of the Tomorrow Trust 
family. Tomorrow Trust has provided a lot hey, such as vouchers, PC devices, and things to exfoliate our skins. Thank 
you for that. Through, and with Tomorrow Trust we have a source to depend on; a future to work towards and people 
to pay back after our succeed. Tomorrow Trust has become one of the blesses God has blessed me with. I’m grateful.

I have improved mentally as well as educationally. I wish to continue studying at Tomorrow Trust to improve and to 
gain more knowledge. I’m so grateful to be a Tomorrow Trust beneficiary. I would like to thank God for giving them the 
strength to work on succeeding the Tomorrow Trust organisation. I would also like to thank the teachers, sponsors, the 
manager, and everyone who contributed and placed their hands to help succeed the organisation. Thank You!

Andiswa Ncube Grade 9 2020
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To Tomorrow Trust 

It is an honour to write this letter to you. I am writing to acknowledge you on my academic 
progress for the year 2020, which would not have been possible without this programme. 

The journey of being a matric student during COVID-19 was not a walk in the park. I struggled a lot with 
anxiety, lost interest in my studies, and found every possible reason to absent myself from school. With the 
help of free counselling from Tomorrow Trust, I finally regained the strength and passion to study and get 
a university entry, which I did. 

Tomorrow Trust did not stop at anything to see us fed during the lock down by providing us with food 
packs. I cannot stress how grateful I am for that since my father was not working at that time. Not only 
that, the WhatsApp group chats we had for Mathematics helped keep me disciplined and going through 
my work. My appreciation to Mam Sandra and Mr Franck for pushing us to go through the work. The 
journey with Mr Franck is one I will cherish for the rest of my academic life. We used to go through 
chapters I did not understand during midnight hours while everyone was resting. I know this is a formal 
letter but I wish I could put an emoji to express how I feel. 

Since I was using YouTube videos to learn, the SIM cards loaded with gigs and gigs of data gave me an 
opportunity to learn online. This was not the only platform I used. The Siyavula App was my best friend 
when I got tired of a formal learning setting which of course was my desk and chair in my back room. 

I wish to stress the significance of iPads we got from iStore Meets Africa. Since teachers at my school 
were overwhelmed with the work they had to cover leading to actually moving through chapters 
without considering that we might not have understood. The application loaded on the iPad and access 
to platforms like RedX learning platform, helped me get clarity on some chapters. I mainly used the 
worksheets for revision since did not have hard copies of past examination papers. 

My parents could not afford to buy me toiletries since only my mother was working at that time. I want to 
thanks the Tomorrow Trust team for helping me get the toiletries by providing me with the vouchers. You 
pulled my family out of financial distress. I am proud to say I am a “Witsie for life” because of Tomorrow 
Trust. 

Appreciation to our coordinators for being patient with us and attending to our needs. I would 
like to thank all the sponsors for associating with Tomorrow Trust to provide quality education to 
underprivileged students like myself. Special thanks to all the teachers that engaged in our Zoom lessons 
to assist us with our academics. To all the psychologists that carried out psychometric tests-they worked. I 
discovered my purpose, which I had previously ignored conforming to pressure from friends. 

The journey I had with you was an awesome one. Incorporating learning and fun worked out for me. It is 
no longer a chore, but a hobby. I could write thousand things I loved about this programme. It no longer 
feels like an educational programme but a family. 

I would like to continue this journey with you into higher education. I am hoping that it does not end here. 

Moshai Letsoalo GRADE 12
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As part of the holistic support for our learners and students, 
the Stepping Stones Career Programme aims to explore the 
various elements which go into identifying and selecting 
one’s career path.

For our high school learners, the programme guides them 
to understand themselves as individuals (personality 
characteristics, interests, and values) and explores this along 
with a wide range of career options, both traditional and 
non-traditional.

Learners are also provided with a new support programme 
called Seeds In Nature Mentorship Programme, which 
feeds into the holistic development aspect of overall growth 
and development, including their own individual future 
plans. Grade 11 and 12 learners undergo a formal career 
assessment, and are guided in understanding the outcome 
and what this means for their Tertiary options.

For our Tertiary students, guidance and support is provided 
through informal career talks with people in their select 
industries, workshops for work readiness and career 
counselling. This forms part of our career conversations, 
where professionals from specific sectors are invited to come 
and have a conversational meeting with the students who 
are studying towards those specific fields. 

Three Career Conversations sessions were held in 2020  
in the following industries: 
• Law
• Business Finance, Accounting and Economics
• Engineering

The speakers who took part had all ventured into different 
paths and fields, which helped students think more broadly 
about their career path. Ranging from corporate experience 
to entrepreneurship and international work experience, the 
speakers were able to speak to various post-tertiary options 
which students could explore.

STEPPING STONES 
 CAREER PROGRAMME 
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GRADE 9

AIM: Provide Grade 9 learners with insight on careers 
based on the subjects they have chosen and on what their 
interests are.

The session was hosted with all Tomorrow Trust Grade 9 
learners over WhatsApp. The learners had the opportunity 
to engage and ask questions on an accessible platform. The 
sessions were two hours long and structured in a way that 
allowed for information to be shared. Learners then got the 
opportunity to ask questions and get clarity on anything 
career-related.

The information which was covered in the WhatsApp 
session included:
• Knowing your interests and personality
• Different careers and subject choices needed
• Mathematics vs Mathematics Literacy
• Choosing and understanding your subjects.

OUTCOME
• 87% felt that the workshop information was easy to 

follow
• 100% felt that the workshop content was interesting and 

engaging
• 87% felt that the workshop duration was long enough for 

what they needed
• 100% felt that the workshop information was relevant to 

them as Grade 9s.

GRADE 10

AIM: Provide Grade 10 learners with a developmental 
session on a step-by-step career plan, understanding the 
careers related to their subject choice and understanding 
their personality.

The Zoom session was hosted with all Tomorrow Trust Grade 
10 learners. The learners had the opportunity to engage and 
ask questions on an accessible platform. The sessions was 
2 hours long and was structured in such a way as to allow 
for information to be shared and then for the learners to ask 
questions and get clarity on anything career-related.

The session looked in detail at: 
• My 3-step career plan (Who-Where-How)
• How to make a career decision
• Common career options
• What and where to study after Grade 12
• Preparing for Grade 11.

OUTCOME
• 100% felt that the workshop information was easy to 

follow
• 91% felt that the workshop content was interesting and 

engaging
• 87% felt that the workshop duration was long enough for 

what they needed
• 91% felt that the workshop information was relevant to 

them as Grade 11s
• 100% felt that Zoom worked well for this workshop.

The career choices are important  

to us. We must learn about them  

so that we could know what we must 

do with our career choices.

Thank you. I was able to learn  

more about what I’m going to do 

after matric.

 PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

 CAREER CONVERSATIONS
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GRADE 11 

AIM: Provide Grade 11 learners with a developmental 
session on understanding which careers are suitable 
for their personality and interests, information which 
could help them make career decisions, career options, 
and prepare them for Grade 12. We facilitated 4 sessions 
throughout the year. Each session was hosted on zoom 
over a 2 hour period. 

The sessions covered career information such as:
• Thinking about your career – your values, interests and 

abilities
• The importance of getting to know yourself
• The steps to making a career decision
• Study options after Grade 12
• Applying to study further
• Tips for Grade 12. 

OUTCOME
• 100% felt that the workshop information was easy to 

follow
• 100% felt that the workshop content was interesting and 

engaging
• 95% felt that the workshop duration was long enough for 

what they needed
• 96% felt that the workshop information was relevant to 

them as Grade 11s
• 95% felt that Zoom worked well for this workshop.

     I really appreciated the workshop  

and thank Tomorrow trust and sister 

Reabetsoe for giving us this opportunity 

to learn more about careers.

The career workshop was very 

educational. I learned a lot about 

different types of careers and 

different universities.
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GRADE 12 

AIM: Provide Grade 12 learners with a developmental 
session on applying for funding and accommodation, 
information on different institutions, how to apply to 
university, and how to increase their marks in matric. 
We facilitated three WhatsApp sessions over a 2-hour 
engagement period and one Zoom session for the  
Grade 12s. 

WHATSAPP SESSIONS 
The WhatsApp session was run with 3 different groups 
of Grade 12 to allow for more engagement and an 
opportunity for all learners to feel free to ask questions. The 
sessions were 2 hours long and were structured in a way that 
allowed for information to be shared. The learners were then 
able to ask questions and get clarity on anything career-
related.

In the WhatsApp session the information which was 
covered included:
• Different institutions to apply to
• How to make the right choice
• Prospectuses for different institutions
• Working out your Admission Point Score (APS) and how 

to apply to university
• The application fees for different institutions
• Funding opportunities
• How to apply for NSFAS and the Tomorrow Trust tertiary 

bursary
• How to apply for accommodation at university
• How to upgrade matric marks and institutions which  

do this.

OUTCOME
• 100% felt that the workshop information was easy to 

follow
• 97% felt that the workshop content was interesting and 

engaging

• 76% felt that the workshop duration was long enough for 
what they needed

• 97% felt that the workshop information was relevant to 
them as Grade 12s

• 73% felt that WhatsApp worked well for this workshop.
 
ZOOM ONLINE SESSION 
Following the WhatsApp feedback, a Zoom session was 
arranged to check in with the Grade 12s to determine if 
they had all the guidance and information they needed, 
especially before university applications close for 2021. 

The Zoom session was run with all of the Grade 12s in one 
group, where information was shared and the learners were 
given an opportunity to ask any outstanding questions. The 
session covered a summary of the WhatsApp workshop, 
applying for NSFAS and the Tomorrow Trust Holistic and 
Tertiary programme.

OUTCOME
• 100% felt that the workshop information was easy to 

follow
• 100% felt that the workshop content was interesting and 

engaging
• 100% felt that the workshop duration was long enough 

for what they needed
• 100% felt that the workshop information was relevant to 

them as Grade 12s
• 100% felt that Zoom worked well for this workshop.

The career workshop was very 

insightful and Aus’ Rea makes  

it easy for us to be comfortable 

enough to ask questions.
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SEEDS IN NATURE 
MENTORSHIP PROGRAMME 2020 

Mentorship has been proven to be beneficial for both 
mentees and mentors in various ways. For mentees, it 
provides an opportunity to receive support and guidance; 
while for mentors it is an opportunity to reinforce 
knowledge, enhance leadership skills and give back. 
Incorporating the Tomorrow Trust vision and mission, 
developing our own personalised mentorship programme 
was deemed essential in contributing to the holistic 
development of our beneficiaries, especially during a 
pandemic.

Named by our 2020 Grade 10s, the Seeds in Nature 
Mentorship programme provides an opportunity for our 
senior learners (Grade 10-12) to be mentored by a caring 
adult. Issues such as personal identity, self-confidence 
and self-esteem, skills development, and interpersonal 
experiences are a few of the areas which learners feel they 
would benefit from exploring in a safe and consistent 
mentorship relationship.

The Tomorrow Trust mentorship programme was 
therefore developed and structured in a way that allowed 
volunteering mentors to support our learners through a 
virtual collaborative mentorship journey. 

Felt that it would help 
them grow as a person

Felt that the sessions 
were going well

Felt that their mentor 
really tries their best 

to help them

Were excited about 
the mentorship 

programme
mentors from various 

donor companies, 
organisations and our 

alumni network

Grade 10  
mentees

27

38

MENTOR AND MENTEE FEEDBACK

of the learners
100%

When the session ends I learn  
things that I thought they were not 
necessary, the programme helps me  

grow to another person and have 
different views.

   I get to express myself more freely 

without even being afraid that my 

information can be linked.

The guide given to us as the 

mentees is really building us up to 

the best versions of ourselves.
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Following the announcement of the Covid-19 pandemic 
and lockdown in March 2020, the Tertiary team instantly 
mobilised multiple resources and avenues to provide 
additional support to all the Tertiary students in the 
programme. 

OUR SUPPORT OVER THE COURSE OF THE YEAR 
INCLUDED:

1. Ensuring all students were equipped with laptops and 
devices to access online learning as well as the provision 
of data over the course of the year too. 

2. From Level 4, some students were allowed to move back 
to their residences, many of which closed for the Level 
5 lockdown period. The Tertiary Team worked hard to 
motivate for and make arrangements for students to 
move back into their residences, particularly those in 
areas of poor connectivity.

3. During the lockdown period, the students continued 
to have full-time access to their Psychologist on the 
Tertiary Team. We also continued to provide therapeutic 
support and guidance to all students, touch basing with 
them every second week. Our sessions largely focused 
on managing the online learning process as well as 
various personal or familial challenges the students were 
experiencing. 

4. The 24-hour cellphone continued to remain active with 
students able to access a Psychologist at any time of the 
day, particularly for after-hour emergencies. We noted an 
increase in the number of after-hour emergencies during 
the lockdown period but successfully managed all of 
them to date.

5. Understanding the need our students had to access 
information on a continuous basis, we launched a page 
on various Social Media platforms where we posted 
academic tips, wellness information, and career guidance 
each week to assist our students with the various aspects 
of their personal and professional development. 

6. Our Holistic Workshop Programme remained in place 
throughout the year, with additional workshops designed 
and implemented specifically targeting the challenges 
brought about by the pandemic for students. 

7. Through numerous donations we received, we were 
able to provide all our Tertiary students with a self-care 
package consisting of sanitiser, masks, food vouchers and 
other items. During this difficult time we knew that every 
little bit goes a long way. 

 TERTIARY PROGRAMME
COVID-19 RESPONSE
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At Tomorrow Trust, we pride ourselves on implementing an integrated, individually tailored support programme for all our 
students. We understand that our focus can not only be on education if we want our students to unlock their true potential 
fully and successfully transition through university. Instead, we provide our students with a safe space and a community 
they can belong to, allowing them to explore, thrive and grow.

Our three areas of intervention as shown below, are therefore interlinked, because we believe that true potential cannot be 
unlocked if one of these areas are missing.

1) ACADEMIC ANALYSIS
The analysis of the 2020 tertiary students’ academics illustrates not only an improvement in performance, but also the overall 
benefits of holistic support to these students, which ensures success in all areas. The table below indicates how many students 
met the requirements of their year of study and passed either most or all of their modules therefore progressing into the next 
year of study, versus those who failed and are required to repeat the year. 

YEAR NO. OF BENEFICIARIES 
SUPPORTED PASSED THE YEAR FAILED THE YEAR

2020 101 97% 3%

When looking at a further breakdown of our 2020 results, the table below indicates how many students graduated, how many 
have continued studying and how many are no longer funded by the Tomorrow Trust. 
 
 
 
 
 

YEAR
NO. OF 

BENEFICIARIES 
SUPPORTED

GRADUATED CONTINUED 
STUDYING

LEFT THE 
ORGANISATION

2020 101 46% 48% 6%
 

This table further breaks down the last column, looking in more depth at the 6% who did not complete their studies with us 
and the reasons why. It is important to note that ‘Academic Exclusion’ refers to students who were academically excluded from 
the university and were therefore not permitted to continue studying. ‘Completing academic requirements’ refers to students 
who passed almost all of their modules, with the exception of one or two modules in order to graduate. These students however, 
managed to find full-time employment and will complete their studies funding themselves, not through the Tomorrow Trust.

YEAR NO. OF BENEFICIARIES 
SUPPORTED DROP OUT ACADEMIC 

EXCLUSION

COMPLETING 
ACADEMIC 

REQUIREMENTS
DECEASED

2020 101 0% 2% 3% 1%  
 
 
 
 
 

 PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

 TERTIARY
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2) CAREER ANALYSIS
One of our biggest goals at Tomorrow Trust is to prepare our students with the transition from being a student to a 
professional. Our work readiness and career guidance interventions play an integral part in ensuring our students not only 
secure employment upon graduation but also are equipped with the skills required to succeed in the workplace. While 
2020 saw the largest number of students graduate from the Tomorrow Trust, the Covid-19 pandemic resulted in significant 
challenges in the job market for students. Below is a table outlining the percentage of students who found employment at 
various times following their graduation as well as the total number of candidates either employed or studying further from each 
graduate cohort 6 months after graduating. 
 

YEAR NO. OF 
GRADUATES

BEFORE 
GRADUATING

WITHIN 6 
MONTHS

AFTER 6 
MONTHS

STUDYING 
FURTHER UNEMPLOYED TOTAL

2017 36 53% 8.3% 13.8% 8.3% 16.6% 83.4%

2018 24 71% 16.6% - 8.3% 4.1% 95.9%

2019 34 50% 10% - 26% 14% 86%

2020 47 38% 23.5% - 19.5% 19% 81%*

*Statistics as at April 2021 

3) HOLISTIC WORKSHOP PROGRAMME
A large part of the psycho-social component of our 
support model includes the design and implementation 
of a number of workshops throughout the year. Our goal 
at Tomorrow Trust is always to encourage our students 
to develop themselves holistically and our workshop 
programme each year is created with this in mind. 

As our support model is run in-house, over the course of 
the past year, we were able to continue running all our 
workshops and  to create and implement interventions 
and programmes immediately, as the need arose for our 
students throughout the year.

These workshops took place online for most of the year, 
however, as South Africa transitioned into Level 1 of the 
lockdown, students rquested that the workshops were 
run face-to-face. Thus, for the last few months of 2020, the 
workshops were all ran in-person.

WORKSHOP TITLE FACILITATOR

Goal setting & Vision Boards Tertiary Team

Health & Wellbeing
External 

facilitators

Managing Stress & Anxiety Tertiary Team

Financial Literacy Old Mutual

Personal & Professional Branding Tertiary Team

Managing Gender Stereotypes Tertiary Team

CV Writing & Interview Skills IQ Business

Emotional Intelligence: Self-awareness  
& Leadership

Tertiary Team

CEO Session: The Future of South Africa James Donald

Preparing for life after graduation TT Alumni

Gender Stereotypes in the workplace Tertiary Team

Communication and conflict management Tertiary Team
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TERTIARY PROGRAMME 
– WESTERN CAPE

While the Tertiary Programme has had a very small foothold 
in the Western Cape over the past few years, 2020 brought 
with it significant growth in this area. Specifically, while 
we have grown the number of beneficiaries we support, 
we have also focused on implementing more focused 
interventions and programmes, while also establishing 
and growing partnerships at an institutional, corporate and 
organisational level.

Having seen the need for support in the Western Cape, 
we hope to continue expanding our reach, making a 
sustainable impact. The table below illustrates the growth 
and progression of our Tertiary Programme in the Western 
Cape over the past four years.

2018 2019 2020

7 STUDENTS 13 STUDENTS 19 STUDENTS

Students at 
Stellenbosch 

Students at 
Stellenbosch  

& UCT

Students at 
Stellenbosch  

& UCT

Degrees 
in Science, 
Commerce, 

Medicine

Degrees in 
Agriculture, 
Commerce, 

Law, Medicine, 
Computer 

Science

Degrees in 
Agriculture, 

Science, 
Commerce, 

Law, Medicine, 
Computer 

Science

Mainly 
telephonic 

support with 
some sessions 

– 3 holistic 
workshops

Face to face 
sessions 

every month 
– 6 holistic 
workshops

Face to face 
sessions 

every month 
– 8 holistic 
workshops

Budget  
of approx.  
R550 000

Budget  
of approx.  

R1.3 million

Budget  
of approx.  

R2.7 million
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#CHANGE A STORY
TERTIARY

TUMELO THLABANYANE – Tumelo Thlabanyane is a true indicator of the Tomorrow 
Trust model, having joined the Holiday and Saturday School Programme in primary 
school, then progressing into high school before joining the Tertiary Programme. Through 
hard work, dedication and focus Tumelo completed his Matric in 2018 with wonderful 
results coming in the Top 3 of his high school.  Tumelo is currently pursuing a Bachelor 
in Diagnostic Radiography at the University of Johannesburg and is thriving at the 
opportunity to pursue a career he is passionate about. Tumelo remains an active member of 
the Tertiary Programme, regularly volunteering and giving back to the Holiday and Saturday 
School Programme as he understands the impact the programme has on other youth.

CHUMA MOSS – Tomorrow Trust not only prioritises academic excellence but also 
emphasises the importance of mental health and leading a balanced lifestyle. As much as 
I appreciate the financial support, the psychological aspect has been the most wonderful 
thing for me. The one-on-one sessions with Stacey, coupled with the various tertiary 
workshops that run throughout a year have been a fountain of knowledge that have 
guided me in making improvements in my own life. I have learnt to be more self-aware, 
self-confident and I am learning to deal with my anxiety. As students we go through a lot 
of silent battles and we often forget to take care of ourselves in the process. Sometimes 
one phone call or meeting with someone who understands you, truly cares about you, 
and wants you to succeed is all you really need. Knowing that the support system is always 
there, even when you think you don’t need it, has been an amazing blessing for the past 
four years, and one I am most grateful to Tomorrow Trust for. The ability of Tomorrow Trust 
to provide holistic support to its students, makes them pioneers and shining examples for 
other bursaries in the country. They go above and beyond for their students and are playing 
a fundamental role in shaping the future of bursaries in South Africa.

MAKGOTSO MOGAFE – Tomorrow Trust offers a holistic support system that is kind 
of like a one-stop-shop for everything to get you through university. You get academic, 
financial, psychological, and emotional support that all contribute to you having a smooth 
ride through university. Tomorrow Trust has really helped me juggle my responsibilities 
because I know that I have had them in my corner for the past four years – supporting me 
through everything.
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BENNY MAKOLOANE – Tomorrow Trust is such a relevant organisation because they 
help youth fund their studies and provide a holistic model and development programme 
that ensures work readiness. They are constantly sharing new information with us through 
workshops and on top of that – they offer academic and financial support. Tomorrow Trust 
has allowed for me to focus on my studies without worrying about tuition or other costs 
related to my studies for the past year. They have lifted a financial burden off my family and 
I’s shoulders, for which I will forever be grateful for. I believe in God, and I truly believe that 
God works to serve and bless the youth through the work Tomorrow Trust does.

MARANATHA MARARA – In the three years I have been with them, Tomorrow Trust 
has helped me with developing other aspects of my life through encouraging self-
development and empowering me to be career ready and change the world around me. 
They are empowering me, and other youth, to be conscious of our potential and what 
we can achieve. One does not encounter Tomorrow Trust and remain the same because 
transformation for the better. The current era we live in is different in comparison to our 
parents, or even our grandparents. There are many gaps that need to be filled from primary 
to high school, from high school to university, and from university to the workplace. As a 
Tomorrow Trust beneficiary, I have been equipped with knowledge I would not have merely 
stumbled on in my life. I feel supported to the point where it feels like there is a community 
of people rooting for me and supporting me every step of the way.

SPHIWE HLOPHE – Tomorrow Trust is unique in the way it approaches its bursaries in 
a holistic manner. They do not just focus on your academics, but instead, they make sure 
they help you become the best version of yourself across different aspects of your life. They 
bring hope and help youth nurture the dreams they are on the brink of giving up on. They 
are not a just a bursary organisation – they are a family that makes sure your dreams aren’t 
limited by your background or finances. They give you the opportunity to choose what you 
want to do and let you add value to your own life. Tomorrow Trust has helped me reach for 
my dreams without having to worry about financial barriers. I have only been with them for 
since the beginning of the year, but if I didn’t receive help, I would have had to drop out. It is 
a gift to be given the opportunity to focus on my academics instead of worrying about any 
external limitations.
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COVID19 has impacted Global economies with 
South Africa’s annualised growth rate for 2020 being 
-51%. This has impacted on job markets, market 
growth, and employment status. 

Within South Africa, during the pandemic peak, (June 
2019-June 2020) full time employment decreased by 
-6.2% contributing to an overall unemployment rate 
of 28.48% for 2020.

Tomorrow Trust analysis the pandemic effect on 
our Alumni and the insights were valuable. As we 
continue to navigate through this pandemic and start 
to rebuild the South African economy, Tomorrow Trust 
is confident that growth and opportunity will prevail 
once again.

We had 61 respondents on a survey conducted to 
measure how the alumni and graduates have been 
impacted by the COVID 19 pandemic

47% of the respondents were not directly affected 
by COVID-19, their situations remained the same, 
some remained employed with the same salary and 
conditions, while others remained job hunting. Some 
of the self- employed also did not have their situation 
change.

10% of the respondents were retrenched or let go 
due to COVID-19 while. While some lost jobs some 
were able to find employment. 14% experienced 
salary cuts while 2% who attempted to start 
businesses had to close them down.

Some experienced good news, as 2% were promoted 
to senior positions, 8% were retained either extended 
contracts or permanent posts. 2% indicated that they 
have seen profit in their businesses. 

HOW DID COVID-19

AFFECT OUR ALUMNI IN 2020?

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON ALUMNI

Not directly 
affected

Experienced 
salary cuts

Retrenched  
or let go

Closed a start-up 
business 

Were  
promoted

Had business 
profit increase

Were retained

From 61 participants 
in the survey: 

47%

14%

10%

2%

2%

2% 8%
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CONSCIOUS LEADERS 
OF TOMORROW

SIBONGISENI NENE 
CEO AND FOUNDER OF VEZI SOLUTIONS

Sibongiseni Nene is a young man who is from Thokoza, east of 
Johannesburg. He completed his Grade 12 in 2007, and he then 
joined the Tomorrow Trust as a Tertiary Student in 2008. Sibongiseni 
studied towards a Diploma in IT Networking at College Campus 
and graduated in 2012 from College Campus. After 5 years of work 
experience, Sibongiseni ventured into his own business and started 
Vezi Solutions, an IT-focused small business.

In 2019, Tomorrow Trust provided Sibongiseni with an opportunity 
to use its office space in return for IT services for the organisation. A 
long servicing partner of the Tomorrow Trust, Mimecast, assisted Vezi 
Solution with a host of needs to ensure that Sibongiseni ITC business 
grows from strength to strength.
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CRYSTAL BEHR 
IQ BUSINESS EMPLOYEE

Crystal is from Eldorado Park, in Johannesburg Gauteng. She 
completed her high school education in 2014 and joined the 
Tomorrow Trust’s Tertiary Programme as a beneficiary in 2018 
in her third year of studies. Crystal has always performed well 
academically and has always been eager to learn and develop 
herself personally and professionally. She enrolled to study at 
the University of Johannesburg after completing Grade 12, to 
pursue a general BCom degree. At the end of 2019, she graduated 
with BCom Hons in Strategic Management from the University of 
Johannesburg.

Crystal applied to the IQbusiness graduate programme, beginning 
in 2020. She is now appointed as a Senior Associate Consultant 
at IQbusiness permanently. She has a heart for giving back and 
she has been in the alumni donor community. She is part of the 
Tomorrow Trust committee at IQ Business, driving research projects 
for the Tomorrow Trust beneficiaries.
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F25 EVENT – WESTERN CAPE

The F25 is a group of Mimecast Executive members from 
around the world. On 31 January 2020, Tomorrow Trust 
hosted the Mimecast F25 event at Mseki Primary School 
in the Western Cape. This event’s focus was to emphasise 
climate change and equips the school with trees and plants 
that contribute to the positive outcome of the environment. 

Mimecast provided the school with a Grade R jungle gym 
painted by the executive and storybooks for each Grade R 

PARTNER INVOLVEMENT 
& SUPPORT DURING COVID

GIVING IS NOT JUST ABOUT THE DONATION; IT’S ABOUT MAKING A DIFFERENCE!

TOMORROW TRUST WOULD LIKE TO THANK EACH OF OUR PARTNERS WHO CONTRIBUTED 
TO THE TOMORROW TRUST AND OUR BENEFICIARIES DURING 2020.

MIMECAST

Mimecast has partnered with Tomorrow Trust over the last 
four years and has contributed in various ways. Mimecast 
has shown a strong culture of shared ethical leadership 
where all stakeholders and employees are driven to act in 
the best interest of humanity’s greater good. 

learner. Inspired by Tomorrow Trust, Mimecast F25 sponsored 
18 Mseki primary school-going learners to participate in the 
Junior Holiday and Saturday School Programme in 2020. 
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MIMECAST CSR SUMMIT

Each year, Mimecast hosts a CSR Summit. As part of this 
event, they raise money towards equipping a child with 
a storybook. This year, Mimecast raised fund to provide 
Revealing Freddie readers and activity books to 383 children 
at Reashomile Primary school. The beautiful books outline 
a story of your unique gifts you bring to the world and a 
fun-filled activity book with detailed learning activities and 
stickers.

NELSON MANDELA DAY – COLLABORATING TO MAKE 
A DIFFERENCE

Mimecast approached Tomorrow Trust and Human Doings 
to collaborate on Nelson Mandela Day. Mimecast vision to 
uplift their partner schools – Reoshomile Primary School 
in Gauteng and Mseki Primary school in the Western Cape 
and provide extra support to the school, children, and 
households. Human Doings arranged and distributed 
school uniforms and stationery to the most vulnerable 
children within the school and supplied the schools with 
COVID-19 information posters and PPE for all Educators. 
Tomorrow Trust sourced and distributed over 800 food 
vouchers to each child and their households in both schools. 
By collaborating, Mimecast could make a more significant 
impact within their schools.

IQBUSINESS

As a Foundation initiative within IQbusiness, our Tomorrow Trust 
Leadership and committee had to relook how an impact could 
be made in the lives of the Tomorrow Trust beneficiaries, as we 
could no longer engage face-to-face. Last year, we needed to 
look at how we could still have holistic and fun engagements 
with the beneficiaries, putting safety and the regulations first. 
This resulted in us facilitating virtual engagements and putting 
together care packs for the beneficiaries. Over the course of 
the year, over 80 care packs comprising of mental health tips 
and study techniques, amongst other topics, were delivered to 
the grade 10 beneficiaries. The grade 11s took part in a virtual 
engagement created by the committee in which interactive 
breakout rooms were held focused on motivational letters. 
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FLUOR SOUTH AFRICA

Tomorrow Trust partnered with Fluor South Africa to 
make a difference during COVID-19. The Tomorrow Trust 
helped Fluor South Africa distribute Fluor Cares backpacks 
to 200 Grade learners predominately from Alexandra, 
Johannesburg. These backpacks included scarves, beanies, 
gloves and hand sanitizers for each child. Fluor also assisted 
with a donation of 700 FFP2 masks that were distributed to 
the Gauteng communities. We want to thank @FluorCorp, 
#FluorCares and Fluor South Africa for their generous 
donation towards Tomorrow Trust Orphaned and vulnerable 
children.

LIBERTY COMMUNITY TRUST

During the pandemic, Liberty Community Trust assisted 
Tomorrow Trust with the provision of educational material 
to 385 orphaned and vulnerable children from Grade 
R-3. Foundation Phase learners have missed 69% of their 
schooling. It was imperative to ensure these learners were 
still learning during the pandemic. The partnership with 
Liberty Community Trust helped Tomorrow Trust equip 
these learners with storybooks, educational games and 
activities, puzzles, and interactive notes to stimulated these 
foundation phased learners through a play-based learning 
approach.

WUNDERMAN THOMPSON

During Nelson Mandela Month- Wunderman Thompson 
reached out to Tomorrow Trust to make a difference. 
Wunderman Thompson staff members packs and collected 
105 hygiene packs for our Senior learners and distributed 40 
Freeing Freddie Readers and activity books to Juniors within 
the Tomorrow Trust programme. Wunderman Thompson 
participated in our online career day, speaking to over 100 
of our senior learners about the world of work. Some of 
their team members actively participated in our mentorship 
programme, mentoring Grade 10 learners virtually. BDO

BDO Cape Town donated 120 Scarves, Masks, Gloves, 
Sanitisers, and backpacks o the Tomorrow Trust Western 
Cape learners. During this pandemic, many of our household 
were negatively affected, with many of the families left 
unemployed. This donation kept the learners warm during 
the winter months and protected them from the further 
spread of the virus.
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MONOCLE SOLUTION

Monocle Solution has invested interested in developing 
Emfunsdweni Primary School in Alexandra. Their vision 
is to uplift the school by assisting the school with the 
fundamental basic needs. Monocle Solution donated 300 
face masks and 15 hand dispensers and sanitiser to the 
school during the pandemic to help protect the school from 
COVID-19. Monocle Solution also contributes to the holistic 
development of 5 junior learners within the Tomorrow Trust 
Junior Holiday and Saturday school Programme.

TERACO DATA ENVIRONMENTS FOOD DONATION

During the COVID-19 pandemic, many households and 
organizations battled to collect enough food supplies 
to feed their families and communities. Teraco Data 
Environment generously donated non-persishable foods 
such as tin food, mielie meal, jams, peanut butter, pasta 
towards the care organizations that work closely with the 
Tomorrow Trust. This donation was distributed to 8 different 
care organisations around Gauteng. 

VIRTUAL CONNECTING – DONATION OF DEVICES

COVID-19 has widened the inequality in educational 
opportunity and access amongst our poorest of children. 
Without access to devices, learning platforms, many of these 
children have fallen behind in their classes during 2020. 
We were fortunate to have some of our partners help us to 
equip our Grade 10, 11 and 12 learners, each with a device. 
Thank you, Gautrain Management Agency and Zenzar 
Technologies, for the generous donation, towards building 
our digital access and skills. NELSON MANDELA DAY – VIRTUAL CAREER DAY

Inspiring Virtual Connections into the working world.

During the pandemic, face to face made it challenging to 
connect and give back to the community. Tomorrow Trust 
created a virtual event that focused on developing career 
aspiration and insight into the world of work for Grade 11 
learners. We want to thank all the corporates who joined us 
in connecting with our learners virtually about the World of 
Work:
• PepsiCo • Zenzar Technologies
• Euromonitor Internation • Deloitte  
• Sage Foundation • Cliff Dekker Hofmeyr
• Wunderman Thompson
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 TOMORROW TRUST

COLLABORATIONS IN 2020

TOMORROW’S LEADERS IN TRAINING

During the pandemic, it was evident that Tomorrow Trust 
needed to formalise its holistic framework and find partners 
who specialised in social emotional development. Tomorrow 
Leaders in Training (TLT) is youth empowerment focused on 
activating and maximising the potential of young emerging 
leaders from diverse walks of life through leadership 
programmes. In 2020, TLT provided 134 learners with Online 
sessions focusing on emotional intelligence and leadership, 
and social emotional learning and leadership sessions to 36 
learners in the Western Cape.

“UNTIY IS STRENGTH,WHERE THERE IS TEAM WORK AND COLLABORATION,  
WONDERFUL THINGS CAN BE ACHIEVED.”

NASCEE

Tomorrow Trust is a proud member of NASCEE – the National Association of Social Change Entities in Education. 
This association of non-profit education organisations are working towards maximising the contribution of 
NPO’S towards the National Development goals relating to education in South Africa. 
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HCI FOUNDATION AND eNCA INVESTMENT FOOD RELIEF 
INITIATIVE 

Admist the lockdown, HCI Foundation and eNCA Investment 
launched a COVID-19 Relief Fund aimed at assisting the most 
vulnerable in our society – fellow South Africans at risk of going 
to sleep without a meal. Lunchbox Fund provided the boxes 
already packed and worked along side HCI Foundation to 
equip a network of NGO’S to assist with distribution. Tomorrow 
Trust assisted distributing 600 food parcels to the neediest of 
households. 

ISCHOOL AFRICA – #MY FUTURE

COVID-19 disruptions were severe in our disadvantaged 
communities, particularly effecting South African learners 
coming from these communities. The #MyFuture programme 
was created by Ischool Africa to assist Grade 12’s with additional 
online classes and resources. Tomorrow Trust signed up to be 
the first organisation to receive 80 Ipads, mid week tutoring 
sessions, and additional resources to all our Grade 12 learners. 
This partnership made it possible for all our Grade 12 learners 
to gain access to devices, additional tutoring classes and 
motivational talks by Siya Kholisi and Saray Khumalo.

SUBJEX

Subjex was created during the COVID-19 by Redhill College 
students to provide world-class digital platform to connect and 
enable students to achieve their full academic potential. The 
platform has virtual lessons and teachings in each subject that 
is made available to the Tomorrow Trust Grade 12 learners. This 
provides additional masterclasses for the Grade 12 learners.

FIERCE PROGRAMME

In 2020 the Tertiary Team hosted a series of workshops 
called FIERCE; one of a series of workshops designed by 
Arise Family which is an NPO based in the Western Cape, 
working with families in resource poor communities to 
promote new families through adoption and foster care.

FIERCE is a self-esteem programme which aims to 
explore and implement positive strategies and coping 
skills designed to increase self-esteem in a safe and 
supportive environment. The goal is to improve the 
way female students think about themselves, and their 
decision making and life choices, which in turn will assist 
them in reaching their full potential. 

The FIERCE workshop was aimed at female tertiary 
students. Consisting of five interactive face to face 
sessions, the small, intimate group size format created 
a safe space for the students to talk about their self-
esteem, how they experience it and how it affects them 
on a daily basis. The main themes that emerged from 
the session included body image and the pressure that 
society puts on women to look and act a certain way. 
The sessions allowed the students to realize that they are 
not alone and there are other female students who feel 
similar. We worked on creating a positive identity and 
self-esteem, changing the negative self-talk and being 
their authentic selves. 

YOUTH EMPLOYABILITY ACCELERATOR 
PROGRAMME

In partnership with the African Management Institute, 
Tomorrow Trust ran a pilot programme over the course 
of 2020 for a number of our final year students. Through 
an online platform, students had the opportunity 
to complete two courses, “Getting A Job” and “Self-
management,” aimed at improving their overall career 
skills and employability. 

As the pilot programme was voluntary, we are thrilled 
that 92% of the students who signed up completed 
both courses. Following the completion of the pilot, 
AMI held a virtual Graduation Ceremony on the 29th 
September to commemorate and celebrate the students’ 
achievements. We are very grateful at the opportunity 
our students received from AMI.
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COLLABORATING WITH OTHER NGOs

Tomorrow Trust believes in working together and 
collaborating where we can to make a bigger impact on 
our community. Tomorrow Trust attended the press release 
whereby Afrika Tikkun and the Western Cape Premier, Alan 
Wilde, discussed a new emerging world that has been 
brought about due to COVID-19 and the importance of 
collaboration in a pandemic like this. 

Afrika Tikkun collabrated with Tomorrow Trust to provide 
3000 masks for the Tomorrow Trust learners in Gauteng and 

a further 100 masks to our learners in the Western Cape. 
Each of our beneficiaries received 3 masks, helping us work 
together to combat the spread of this disease.

Thank you to Airbnb and Afrika Tikkun for making this 
donation possible. This pandemic has brought together 
a deeper, more meaningful way of collaboration and has 
ensure that each organisation does its part ensured the 
safety and health of our orphaned and most vulnerable 
communities.

E3 AND TEACHER CONNECT PARTNERSHIP

As part of a National response to COVID-19 and advocating 
for holistic education, Tomorrow Trust has collaborated 
with E3 to test a National user Teacher Platform called 
TeacherConnect. The platform, funded by Lego Foundation 
is a messaging service that provides resources for all 
learners and teachers in South Africa. This tool will give 
the Department of Basic Education a dedicated line to 
communicate their focus areas and provide advice to 
the broader education community. The National Teacher 
Platform, TeacherConnect responds to the need to integrate, 
at scale, active-learning pedagogies and project-based 
learning into the Department of the Basic education system 
in South Africa. Tomorrow Trust actively ran user groups 
testing the feasibility and user friendly application of the 
platform.
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 TOMORROW TRUST

LEADING THE WAY FORWARD

ONE OF TOMORROW TRUST’S KEY PILLARS IS TO ADVOCATE FOR HOLISTIC EDUCATION, FULLY 
PREPARING FOR THE 4TH INDUSTRIAL REVOLUTION. THIS PILLAR HAS PROVIDED US WITH THE 
OPPORTUNITY TO SHARE BEST PRACTISE AND OPEN OUR ORGANISATION TO DEEPER MORE 

MEANINGFUL COLLABORATION OPPORTUNITIES WITH OTHER STAKEHOLDERS.

CONSCIOUS COMPANY AWARDS

Conscious Companies is a social-economic and political 
environment galvanised as an authentic expression of ethics 
and consciousness. Conscious Companies recognises the 
leadership of government and business sector to initiate and 
deepen conversations and actions of conscious and ethical 
leaders to influence, guide and shape thinking, behaviours, 
purpose and responsibility. 

Tomorrow Trust was recognised and awarded Conscious 
Company 2020 NGO of the year. The Awards is an innovative 
initiative that recognises visionary leaders that have created 
leadership capacity. The award also recognises leaders who 
steer their companies to prosper while placing a premium 
on people, community, culture and the environment. This 
award adds to our credibility and continued Educational 
work specifically in social justice.

Dear James and the TI team!

Well done on winning the Conscious  

Companies Award for 2020. I am so thankful to 

be a beneficiary of TT always, and in my heart 

of hearts, I believe that TI is second to none  

in developing individuals to be more conscious 

and live more meaningfully. I am so proud  

of you all and grateful that I am able to  

make meaningful and conscious decisions  

in life because of the work you do.

I am really lucky! AND WELL DONE!

– Jordan Franks
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YES PROGRAMME 

The YES Programme encourages corporates to contribute 
to empowerment in areas of national priority – addressing 
youth unemployment and upskilling the youth through 
job placement. The Tomorrow Trust has played an active 
role in collaborating with various stakeholders to provide 
hands-on holistic workshops and counselling to support the 
implementation of this programme into the working world. 
We aim to ensure the retention of youth as well as provide a 
comprehensive experience that will make each youth thrive in 
the working world. 

During 2020, the Tomorrow Trust partnered with Komatsu to 
run a programme for 40 participants who had signed up for the 
Yes4Youth Initiative. A programme was designed specifically 
for them, focussing on the development of skills needed for 
the workplace. The programme ran between July 2019 and 
May 2020. 

The sessions were structured as follows:
• Session 1: Introduction and team building session
• Session 2: Workshop on Communication Skills, 

Professionalism and Conflict Management
• Session 3: Small group session followed by individual one-

on-one check in sessions
• Session 4: Workshop on Work Ethic which covered Problem-

Solving, Goal-setting, Emotional Intelligence and Leadership
• Session 5: Small group debriefing, reflecting on challenging 

and skills learnt, planning for post-YES programme
• Session 6: Individual telephonic check in and closing 

sessions

By the end of the programme:
• We had retained 36 of the YES Youth, which constituted 90% 

of the group.
• Tomorrow Trust had conducted 3 comprehensive workshops 

with an attendance rate between 82-95%.
• Tomorrow Trust had ensured all Youth were up to date 

with their online modules. The challenge was the YES 
mobile application did not save some of the data and they 
sometimes battled to access some of the modules. 

• The final one-on-one telephonic conversations showed 
that the majority of the group wanted to go back and study 
further and really enjoyed their time working at Komatsu. 

• Komatsu confirmed that 7 of the YES Youth would be offered 
full-time employment, with 4 being apprenticeships.

Following their final sessions, the YES Youth were provided 
with a customised Career Resource Pack which covered:
• Self-Assessment activities
• Online career resources
• Career planning information
• Preparing for the working world
• Tips of CVs and Cover Letters
• Job-searching strategies
• Interview skills
• Professional etiquette

ENS AFRICA WORK READINESS & WELLNESS 
PROGRAMME

Tomorrow Trust works closely with various partners to offer 
holistic support to their existing programmes. In 2020, 
we partnered with ENS Africa to provide comprehensive 
wellness and work readiness programmes for their final year 
Law students. As part of the programme, Tomorrow Trust ran 
a 3-day workshop series at the start of the year facilitating 
several topics including Emotional Intelligence, Leadership 
Skills, Conflict Management and self-care in the workplace.

Additionally, the graduates received individual counselling 
sessions once a month which provided them with a safe 
space to explore various aspects of their personal and 
professional development. 

BE A BETTER HUMAN  
ONLINE COURSES

In 2020, Tomorrow Trust was 
presented with an opportunity 
to create online courses on a number of topics through a 
platform called Be a Better Human. This organisation runs 
an online platform that provides eLearning micro classes in 
a variety of different topics with a portion of each course fee 
going to the linked charity. 

In a continued effort to learn more about the virtual space, 
our Head of Programmes, Stacey Rontiris, designed two 
courses which are now live on the website. The first course 
is on Emotional Intelligence and the second course is on 
Personal Branding with more courses currently in the work.
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SAGEA DEVELOPMENT CONFERENCE

In November, the Tomorrow Trust attended and 
presented at the South African Graduate Employers 
Association Development Conference which was 
hosted online.  

Stacey Rontiris was selected to present at the 
conference and her presentation was titled “Navigating 
unchartered territory: working with students and 
graduates during a pandemic”. Her presentation 
specifically focused on exploring the mental health 
challenges that students and graduates faced in the 
pandemic, and how the learnings from these can 
contribute towards the interventions designed and the 
work done in the future to support these cohorts. 

We are very grateful to SAGEA for selecting us to 
present and providing us with a platform to share our 
work with other companies and organisations.

VOICES UNITE

Tomorrow Trust partnered with IOA’s new initiative-‘Voices Unite’, a ground-breaking student 
engagement platform and national research study focusing on young people in South Africa. 
Tomorrow Trust Tertiary students participated in one of South Africa’s largest platform that unifies 
and amplifies the voices of the country’s youth – their views, ideas and dynamism.  Through Voices 
Unite, Tomorrow Trust will have access to large scale impact on youth development and deep 
insight into trends facing our 18-34 year olds.

WOMEN IN LEADERSHIP LIGHTHOUSE SERIES

In October, one of our partners, Zensar Technologies invited 
us to participate in the Women in Leadership’s ‘Lighthouse 
Series’; a virtual platform launched in 2020 for global 
interaction with women leaders across varied industries 
to exchange experiences, leadership lessons and strategic 
shifts as companies move into a ‘new normal’. 

Facilitated through a roundtable discussion, we participated 
in the “Rebooting CSR in the age of COVID-19” topic and 
received the opportunity to engage with women from all 
over in the world in a fascinating discussion on the future of 
CSR. We thank Zensar Technologies for inviting us to be part 
of such an exciting initiative. 
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James Donald – CEO
Taryn Rae – Head of Business Development
Rene Van Der Walt – Head of Finances
Nicola Matthews – Head of Operations 
Stacey Rontiris – Head of Programmes & Counseling Psychologist (PS 012 4362)
Joseph Thocha – Holiday & Saturday School Operations Lead
Thandi Sokujika – Stakeholder Relations Lead
Kopano Bokaba – Holiday & Saturday School Junior Programme Lead 
Duduzile Ndlovu – ICT Programme Lead
Reabetsoe Buys – Youth Development Programme Lead & Counseling Psychologist (PS0111473)
Natasha Turton – Psycho-Social Programme Lead & Counseling Psychologist (PS0138231)
Lebogang Ntsane – Communication and Alumni Lead
Precious Hlophe – Office Administration Lead
Zukani Metshane – Western Cape Programme Lead
Lindokuhle Maduna – Business Development Intern
Masilo Mangena – Holiday School Senior Intern

 TOMORROW TRUST

MEET THE TEAM
Tomorrow Trust has a dynamic team of individuals who have worked relentlessly during the COVID-19 pandemic to ensure all our 
beneficiaries needs were met. We are thankful for their hard work, passion, and will to keep us focused on our overall vision and 
mission. 

We salute you, Tomorrow Trust Team!
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“GREAT THINGS IN BUSINESS ARE NEVER DONE BY ONE PERSON.  

THEY ARE DONE BY A TEAM OF PEOPLE.” 

– PROJECT MANAGER.COM 
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 TOMORROW TRUST

SUSTAINABILITY

1

A Guide to Realising your Dreams-A Workbook-

BRENT FEINBERG& KIM NORMAND FEINBERG

We [Tomorrow Trust] have a clear exit strategy that 
empowers orphaned and vulnerable learners to become 
self-sustainable and self-reliant through education. 
We are results-driven to ensure the betterment of our 
beneficiaries and we lean our strategies on our mission 
and vision. We are fully transparent in the work we do and 
the results that emerge, making use a niche organisation 
in the NPO sector. 

TOMORROW TRUST PARTNERS WITH RELATE 
BRACELETS

Relate Bracelets are a 100% not-for-profit social enterprise 
that handmake bracelets to be sold to make a difference 
in the NPO space and change peoples’ lives. Most of their 
revenue is donated to credible causes, including Tomorrow 
Trust. Tomorrow Trust uses the bracelets as a silent income 
generation for organisational costs.

 
FREE THE MIND CO

We have partnered with Free the Mind Co who provides 
Tomorrow Trust with a dynamic reader, activity and 
workbook called Freeing Freddie – The Dream Weaver.

80% contributed by authors of their profit from book sales, 
to support unsponsored learners in the tomorrow trust.

B-BBEE OWNERSHIP DEALS

From South African Broad-based Black Economic 
Empowerment (B-BBEE) recognition, meeting Social 
Economic Development (SED) and Skills Development 
needs, to best practice Corporate Social Investment (CSI), 
Employment volunteering opportunities or strategic 
philanthropy. We are currently engaged in and have secured 
a B-BBEE deal that will provide us with funding (over the 
long-term) which will form part of our endowment.

ALUMNI 10%

10% of their salaries contributed by our tertiary secondary 
graduates (alumni), once in stable employment for two 
years, as their way of giving back to the organisation and 
supporting other children and youth in a situation similar to 
theirs. This has raised R1 500 000
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 TOMORROW TRUST

PARTNERS
GOVERNMENTAL PARTNERS
Gauteng Department of Social 
Development
Gautrain Management Agency

CORPORATE & FOUNDATION 
PARTNERS
Amicorp South Africa (Pty) Ltd  
Anglo American Chairman Fund 
Aurogen Pharmaceuticals
Bain & Company
Boston Foundation
Brait Foundation
Cell C 
CIDA ECubed
Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr
Concor Construction 
CSS Credit Solution
Danaher Holding South Africa Trust 
Datatec 
Didi & Friends Foundation
DNI  
ENS
ETHOS
Euromonitor International
First Rand Foundation
Gage Car Rental
Gerald & Shirley Leissner Bursary 
Glencore Pharameuticals

Glenmark
HCI Foundation 
Hellios Towers
IGO Travel
Kirsh Family Foundation
Komatsu 
Lego Foundation
Liberty Community Trust
Lumnia Foundation
Merck 
Michael & Susan Dell Foundation
Mimecast  
Monocle Solution
Murray & Roberts 
Nedbank Education Private Wealth  
Oppenheimer Memorial Trust
PepsiCo South Africa 
Petersburg Foundation 
RB Hagart Trust 
Robert Niven Trust
Sage Foundation
Spirax Sarco
Teraco Data Environments
Timken 
Valid South Africa
Wood PLC Mining
Wood South Africa 
Zensar Technologies

PARTNERING ORGANISATIONS
Ischool Africa #MyFuture
Lalela
Subjex
Tomorrow Leaders in Training
Umbambiswano

JUNIOR PARTNERING HOSTING 
SCHOOLS
Maryvale Primary School
Montrose Primary School
Pinelands North Primary School  
– Western Cape
Rosebank Primary School

SENIOR PARTNERING 
HOSTING SCHOOLS
Crawford College Sandton
King Edward VII School (KES)
Maryvale College
Redhill College
St Andrews School For Girls

INDIVIDUAL PARTNERS
Abdul Qadr Hassen 
Alan Jacobson
Alison O Hare
Brandon Bekker
Bruno Gruwez 
Cheryl Abrahams
Clive Jordan
Dr Evangeline Mthethwa  
Edwin Edelstein
Eliza Hedegaard
Germano Cardoso
Jan Jordaan  
Jules Martin
Kelly Morkel 
Kholekile Ndamase  
Laxmi Narasimha Thadakamalla
Mark and Vanessa Bilbe
Martin Sacks
Nicholas Lennon
Reed Bundy
Saray Khumalo
Simon Ellis
Simon Thornberry
Susann Ribe 

IN-KIND DONATIONS
Answer Series
Argyle House
BBBEE online
BDO
BDO Cape Town
Belvedere on Barkley
Europcar
Fluor South Africa
Formula 1
GIBS Business School
Harrington Johnson Wands Attorneys
Ideal Toys
IQ Business
JHI

Lego Foundation
Levis Strauss South Africa
Nahana Foundation
Nicole Levy (Optometrist)
Nu-World Industries (Pty) Ltd
Pan McMillan
PEP
PicknPay
Shoprite
Siyavula
Solidarity Fund
Soul Foods
Transform Marketing
Van Schaik
Wunderman Thompson

DISCLAIMER: Some photographs used within this Annual Report were taken 
under consent Pre-COVID19. 
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FOR THE DESIGN OF 
THIS ANNUAL REPORT, 

TOMORROW TRUST 
WOULD LIKE TO 

EXPRESS THEIR SINCERE 
APPRECIATION TO: 083 408 8527

Design and layout by:
GIVING IS NOT JUST ABOUT THE DONATION, 

 IT ’S ABOUT MAKING A DIFFERENCE! TOMORROW 
TRUST WOULD LIKE TO THANK EACH OF 

OUR DONORS WHO CONTRIBUTED TO THE 
TOMORROW TRUST LEARNERS DURING 2020. 
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(Registration number IT6728/05)

Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2020

General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile: South Africa

The principal objectives of the trust are to generate, apply, 
and convey income and/or capital for the education of 
orphaned and/or vulnerable children, as well as youth who 
are indirectly or directly affected by HIV/AIDS. 

Trustees and  JH Phalane 
key management: L Matakata
 SR Midlane
 ST Mensah
 LV Matai

Registered office: Isle of Houghton, Parktown
 36 Boundary Road
 Old Trafford Four - 2nd floor
 Houghton Estate
 2198

Postal address:  PO Box 1812
 Saxonwold
 Johannesburg
 2132

Auditors:  BDO South Africa Incorporated
 Chartered Accountants (SA)
 Registered Auditors
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The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Trustees’ Responsibilities and Approval

The trustees are required to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial 
statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements 
fairly present the state of affairs of the trust as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the 
period then ended, in conformity with the basis of accounting as set out in Note 1 to the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting as set out in Note 1 to the financial statements 
and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and 
estimates.

The trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the trust and 
place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the trustees to meet these responsibilities, 
the trustees set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards 
include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate 
segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the trust and all employees are 
required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the trust’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable 
circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the trust is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all 
known forms of risk across the trust. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the trust endeavours to minimise it by ensuring 
that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures 
and constraints. 

The trustees are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control 
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial statements. However, any 
system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The trustees have reviewed the trust’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2021 and, in the light of this review and the 
current financial position, They are satisfied that the trust has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence 
for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the trust’s financial statements. The financial 
statements have been examined by the trust’s external auditors and their report is presented on page 84-85.

The financial statements set out on pages 86-100, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the board 
of trustees on 30 April2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

____________________________________________  ____________________________________________
Trustee        Trustee
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The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Trustees’ Report

The trustees have pleasure in submitting their report on the financial statements of The Tomorrow Trust for the year ended  
31 December 2020.
1.  Nature of business
 The principal objectives of the trust are to generate, apply and convey income and/or capital for the education of those children who 

are affected, directly or indirectly, with HIV/AIDS.
 The operating results and state of affairs of the trust are set out in the attached financial statements and do not, in our opinion, 

require any further comment.
 Net surplus of the trust was R 4 579 269 (2019: R 1 307 509).

2.  Beneficiaries
 Those children and/or youth who are orphaned, vulnerable and/or living in poverty.

3.  Trustees and key management
 The trustees in office at the date of this report are as follows:
 JH Phalane
 L Matakata 
 SR Midlane
 ST Mensah
 LV Matai
 There have been no changes to the trustees for the period under review.

4.  Interest in subsidiary company
 Details of material interest in the subsidiary company are presented in note 3 to the financial statements.

5.  Events after the reporting period
 In 2021 the CEO, James Donald, will step down to join a national Department of Basic Education initiative. The trustees have 

appointed transition and search committees, comprised of trustees and senior staff to manage the process.
 Tomorrow Trust holds 100% of the shares of Malviprox Proprietary Limited; a dormant investment holding entity that acquired a 10% 

shareholding in a Special Purpose Entity (SPE) Clusten 16 (Pty) Ltd which in turn owns 25% in Zensar South Africa (Pty) Ltd. In March 
2021 Mavilprox agreed with the shareholders of Clusten to allow Zensar to exercise a buyback as part of ownership restructuring. The 
transaction is pending.

 Other than the above, the trustees are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of 
this report, not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, which significantly affect the financial position of the 
trust or the results of its operations at the date of this report.

6.  Going concern
 The trustees have reviewed the Trust’s cash flow forecast for January 2021 to December 2021 and in light of this review and the 

current Covid-19 pandemic, they are satisfied that the trust has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence in 
the foreseeable future.

7.  Auditors
 BDO South Africa Incorporated continued in office as auditors for the trust for 2020.

8.  In kind donations
 In kind donations to the value of R 1 808 6001 (2019: R 1 764 891) were received during the year under review. The in kind donations 

received included rent, advertising, venue hire, toys, life camp, course fees etc. These are analysed by department as follows:
 Holiday and Saturday School R 492 061
 Tertiary Post-Secondary School  R 104 145
 Organisational expenditure  R 1 180 876
 Cape Town  R 31 518

9.  Trustee remuneration
 Trustees were not remunerated for time or travel costs incurred.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Trustees of The Tomorrow Trust

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Tomorrow Trust (the trust) set out on pages 86-100, which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements of The Tomorrow Trust, for the 31 December 2020 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance 
with the basis of accounting described in note 1 to the financial statements and the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA 
Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities inaccordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to 
performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards). We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to note 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with the Trust’s own accounting policies to satisfy the financial information needs of the trustees and beneficiaries. As a result, 
the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the document titled 
“The Tomorrow Trust Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020”, which includes the Trustees’ Report. The other 
information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Trustees for the Financial Statements
The trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting 
and the requirements of the Trust Deed, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to 
liquidate the trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

BOO South Africa Incorporated
Registration number: 1995/002310/21
Practice number: 905526
VAT number: 4910148685
Chief Executive Officer: ME Stewart
A full list of all company directors is available on www.bdo.co.za
The company’s principal place of business is at The Wanderers Office Park, 52 Corlett Drive, Illovo, Johannesburg where a list of directors’ names is available 
for inspection. BDO South Africa Incorporated, a South African personal liability company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited 
by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Trustees of The Tomorrow Trust

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:
•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 

audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the trust’s internal control.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by the trustees.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the trust’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s

We communicate with the trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

__________________________________
BDO South Africa Incorporated
Registered Auditors

GC Smith
Director
Registered Auditor

30 April 2021

Wanderers Office Park
52 Corlett Drive
lllovo, 2196
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020

   2020  2019 
  Note(s) R R

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment  2  1 319 878  295 244

Investment in subsidiary  3  120  120

Unlisted investment  4  750 000  750 000

   2 069 998  1 045 364

Current Assets

Inventories  5  -  720 160

Loan to related party  6  9 883  -

Trade and other receivables  7  466 875  383 757

Cash and cash equivalents  8  16 890 733  6 987 571

   17 367 491  8 091 488

Total Assets   19 437 489  9 136 852

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Trust capital  9  500  500

Accumulated surplus   11 674 220  7 094 951

   11 674 720  7 095 451

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables  10  165 914  1 759

Deferred income  11  7 596 855  2 039 522

Loan from related party  6  -  120

   7 762 769  2 041 401

Total Equity and Liabilities   19 437 489  9 136 852
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

   2020  2019
  Note(s) R R

Revenue  12  24 495 124  20 568 977

Other income  13  316 422  478 725

Operating expenses   (21 166 531)  (21 119 667)

Operating surplus (deficit)  14  3 645 015  (71 965)

Investment revenue  15  1 011 489  1 585 434

Surplus before taxation   4 656 504  1 513 469

Taxation  16  (77 235)  (205 960)

Total comprehensive income for the year   4 579 269  1 307 509
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Statement of Changes in Equity

    Trust capital  Accumulated Total equity
   surplus

  Note(s)  R  R  R

Balance at 01 January 2019   500  5 787 442  5 787 942

Total comprehensive income for the year   -  1 307 509  1 307 509

Balance at 01 January 2020   500  7 094 951  7 095 451

Total comprehensive income for the year   -  4 579 269  4 579 269

Balance at 31 December 2020   500  11 674 220  11 674 720

Note(s)  9
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Statement of Cash Flows

   2020  2019
  Note(s) R R

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from (used in) operations  17  10 156 820  (1 874 090)

Interest income   625 314  555 634

Dividends received   386 175  1 029 800

Tax paid  18  (77 235)  (205 960)

Net cash from operating activities   11 091 074  (494 616)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  2  (1 177 909)  (326 912)

Sale of property, plant and equipment  2  -  4 001

Loans advanced to related party   (10 003)  -

Net cash from investing activities   (1 187 912)  (322 911)

Total cash movement for the year   9 903 162  (817 527)

Cash at the beginning of the year    6 987 571  7 805 098

Total cash at end of the year  8  16 890 733  6 987 571



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 202090

1.  Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

 The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the accounting policies as set out 
below. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. They are presented in South African Rands.

 These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1  Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
 No significant estimates and judgements have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the trust holds for its own use or for rental to others and which are 
expected to be used for more than one period.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the trust, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

 Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

 Cost includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Property, plant and equipment is 
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

 Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is charged to 
write off the asset’s carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that best reflects 
the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the trust.

 The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

 Item    Depreciation method  Average useful life
 Office equipment   Straight line   6 years
 Computer equipment   Straight line   3 years
 Student equipment   Straight line   3 years
  

1.3 Consolidation

 No consolidated financial statements are prepared.

1.4  Investment in subsidiary

 Investment in subsidiary is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

1.5  Financial instruments

 Initial measurement
 Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction costs except in the initial measurement 

of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit) unless the arrangement constitutes, in 
effect, a financing transaction in which case it is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate 
of interest for a similar debt instrument.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Accounting Policies
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1.5  Financial instruments (continued) 

 Financial instruments at amortised cost
 These include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. Those debt instruments which meet the criteria as determined, are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are classified as current 
assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected to be received or paid, unless the 
arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction.

 At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the 
carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable 
amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

 Financial instruments at cost
 Commitments to receive a loan are measured at cost less impairment.
 
 Equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be measured reliably without undue cost 

or effort are measured at cost less impairment.

Financial instruments at fair value
 All other financial instruments whose fair value can otherwise be measured reliably, without undue cost or effort, are measured at 

fair value through surplus and deficit.

 If a reliable measure of fair value is no longer available without undue cost or effort, then the fair value at the last date that such a 
reliable measure was available is treated as the cost of the instrument. The instrument is then measured at cost less impairment 
until management are able to measure fair value without undue cost or effort.

1.6  Leases

 A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. All 
other leases are operating leases.

 Operating leases – lessee
 Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless:

• another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the benefit from the leased asset, even if the payments are not 
on that basis, or

• the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation (based on published indexes or statistics) to 
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

 Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.7  Inventories

 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and estimated selling price, on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis.

 The cost of books comprises the cost of purchasing the books. At each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment. 
If inventory is impaired, the carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell. The impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Accounting Policies
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1.8  Impairment of assets

 The trust assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment may be impaired.

 If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and compared 
with its carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable 
amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

 If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the 
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of impairment is recognised immediately in surplus 
or deficit.

1.9  Employee benefits

 Short-term employee benefits
 The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as leave pay 

and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is 
rendered and are not discounted.

1.10  Revenue

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that the trust has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods to 
the buyer, or has rendered services under an agreement provided the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is 
probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the trust. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, excluding sales taxes and discounts.

 Dividends are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the trust’s right to receive payment has been established.

 The trust recognises revenue when: the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; it is probable that future economic benefits 
will flow to the entity; and specific criteria have been met for each of the organisation’s activities, as described below:

 Donations and interest are brought to account on initial entry in the accounting records, unless donations are made specifically 
for future years.

 Donations for specific purposes are credited to the relevant fund or project.

1.11  Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.12  Trust capital

 Trust capital is classified as equity.

1.13  Deferred income

 Deferred income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and comprises of donations received in 
advance.

 Deferred income is recognised when cash is received that is specifically mandated to be spent on projects in the future.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
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Accounting Policies



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2020 93

   2020  2019 
    R R

2.  Property, plant and equipment
 
  2020  2019

  Cost  Accumulated Carrying Cost Accumulated Carrying
   depreciation value   depreciation value

Office equipment  126 434  (126 434)  -  126 434  (114 828)  11 606

Computer equipment  949 224  (228 119)  721 105  559 723  (276 085)  283 638

Student equipment  598 773  -  598 773  -  -  -

Total   1 674 431  (354 553)  1 319 878  686 157  (390 913)  295 244

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020

   Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Closing  
   balance    balance

Office equipment   11 606  -  -  (11 606)  -

Computer equipment   283 638  579 136  (8 918)  (132 751)  721 105

Student equipment   -  598 773  -  -  598 773

   295 244  1 177 909  (8 918)  (144 357)  1 319 878

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019

   Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Closing  
   balance    balance

Office equipment   25 399  -  -  (13 793)  11 606

Computer equipment   47 710  326 912  (5 573)  (85 411)  283 638

   73 109  326 912  (5 573)  (99 204)  295 244

3.  Investment in subsidiary
Name of subsidiary    % holding % holding Carrying Carrying
    2020 2019 amount 20209 amount 2019

Malviprox Proprietary Limited    100.00 %  100.00 %  120  120

The carrying amount of the subsidiary are shown gross of impairment losses.
Tomorrow Trust holds 100% of the shares of Malviprox Proprietary Limited acts as a dormant investment holding entity that acquired a 
10% shareholding in a Special Purpose Entity (SPE) Clusten 16 (Pty) Ltd which in turn owns 25% in Zensar South Africa (Pty) Ltd.
In March 2021 Mavilprox agreed with the shareholders of Clusten to allow Zensar to exercise a buyback as part of ownership restructuring. 
The transaction is pending.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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   2020  2019 
    R R

4.  Unlisted investment

Name of subsidiary    % holding % holding Carrying Carrying
    2020 2019 amount 2020 amount 2019
Spirax Proprietary Limited    51.49 %  51.49 %  750 000  750 000

The company carries on the business of the supply of steam traps, strainers, air vents, liquid drainers and associated spares as well as the 
maintenance of such products. The company operates in South Africa.
The board of Spirax SARCO Services SA Proprietary Limited shall comprise of not less than 3 directors. 
Spirax SARCO SA (or its successors-in-title) shall be entitled by written notice to the company to nominate 2 persons for appointment 
as directors on the board.
The Tomorrow Trust shall be entitled by written notice to the company to nominate 1 person for appointment as a director on the board.

5.  Inventories

Inventories    604 572  720 160

    604 572  720 160

Inventories (write-downs)    (604 572)  -

    -  720 160

Inventory comprises primarily educational readers, workbooks and activity books developed as teaching and marketing materials and 
revenue generation for Tomorrow Trust. Management and Trustees note the slow movement of inventory and have taken a decision to 
provide for the future write off of the full value of the inventory.

6.  Loan to (from) related party

Subsidiary

Malviprox Proprietary Limited    9 883  (120)

Related party loan reconciliation

Balance at beginning of year    (120)  (750 120)

Movement during the year    10 003  750 000

Balance at end of year    9 883  (120)

The loan is unsecured, bears no interest and has no fixed repayment terms.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
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   2020  2019 
    R R

6.  Loan to (from) related party (continued)

Unlisted investment

The Trust entered into a loan agreement with Spirax Sarco Services South Africa Proprietary Limited in terms of which the company shall 

advance a loan to the Trust for the purpose of subscribing for 52 ordinary shares in the company, which loan shall be repayable on the 

date on which the first dividends are declared by the company or the date by when the Trust has received sufficient dividends to settle 

the loan. (Refer notes 4 and 15)

Current assets    9 883  -

Current liabilities    -  (120)

    9 883  (120)

7.  Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables    369 001  261 883

Prepayments    16 364  8 050

Deposits    55 010  72 900

Student loans    17 500  40 924

Staff loans    9 000  -

    466 875  383 757

8.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Cash on hand    406  162

Bank balances    4 099 838  1 217 089

Short-term deposits    12 790 489  5 770 320

    16 890 733  6 987 571

9.  Trust capital
 
Capital account / Trust capital

Balance at beginning of year    500  500

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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   2020  2019 
    R R

10.  Trade and other payables

Trade payables    1 299  -

Provision for leave pay    164 615  -

Other payables    -  1 759

    165 914  1 759

11.  Deferred Income

Deferred Income    7 596 855  2 039 522

Deferred income is funding which is ring-fenced or which relates to a future period.

12.  Revenue

Donations    24 495 124  20 568 977

13.  Other income

Administration and management fees received    155 367  95 905

Book sales    153 056  382 820

Insurance claim proceeds    7 999  -

    316 422  478 725 

14.  Operating surplus (deficit)

Operating surplus (deficit) for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Operating lease charges

Premises

• Contractual amounts    492 551  529 868

Equipment

• Contractual amounts    221 942  195 378

    714 493  725 246

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
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   2020  2019 
    R R

14.  Operating surplus (deficit) (continued)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment    (8 918)  (1 572)

Surplus on exchange differences    242  -

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment    144 357  99 204

Employee costs - Administration staff    2 080 002  1 991 288

Employee costs - Teachers    3 094 326  3 048 145

15.  Investment revenue

Dividend revenue

Dividend revenue

Received from unlisted investment (note 20)    386 175  1 029 800

Interest revenue

Bank     625 314  555 634

    1 011 489  1 585 434

16.  Taxation

Major components of the tax expense

Current taxation

Dividend withholding tax    77 235  205 960

The Tomorrow Trust is an approved Public Benefit Organisation. The income generated by the Trust is exempt for taxation purposes in 
terms of Section 10(1)(cN).

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
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   2020  2019 
    R R

17.  Cash generated from (used in) operations

Surplus before taxation    4 656 504  1 513 469

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation    144 357  99 204

Deficit on sale of assets    8 918  1 572

Dividends received    (386 175)  (1 029 800)

Interest received    (625 314)  (555 634)

Non-cash provision for stock write down    604 572  -

Other non-cash settlement of related party loan    -  (750 000)

Changes in working capital:

Inventories    115 588  46 156

Trade and other receivables    (83 118)  275 778

Trade and other payables    164 155  1 759

Deferred income    5 557 333  (1 476 594)

    10 156 820  (1 874 090)

18.  Tax paid

Current tax for the year recognised in surplus or deficit    (77 235)  (205 960) 

19.  Commitments

Operating leases – as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year    230 700  185 857

- in second to fifth year inclusive    401 060  -

    631 760  185 857

Operating lease payments represent rental paid for business premises.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2020 99

   2020  2019 
    R R

20. Related parties

Relationships

Trustees  JH Phalane

  L Matakata

  SR Midlane

  ST Mensah

  LV Matai

Members of key management  James Donald (Chief Executive Officer)

Subsidiary  Malviprox Proprietary Limited

Appointed as directors  JH Phalane

  J Donald

Unlisted investment  Spirax Sarco Services South Africa Proprietary Limited

Appointed as director  JH Phalane

Other   The Kusasa Trust

Appointed as trustees  JH Phalane

  LV Matai

  J Donald

Related party balances and transactions with key management personnel of the trust

Related party balances

Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties

Malviprox Proprietary Limited    9 883  (120)

Related party transactions

Administration fees (received from) paid to related parties

Zenzar SA Proprietary Limited (note 3)    (42 000)  (42 000)

The Kusasa Trust    (113 367)  (53 905)

    (155 367)  (95 905)

The trustees wish to note that the Trust has entered into an agreement with The Kusasa Trust in respect of management fees to be 
received. Per the Trust Deed of the Kusasa Trust, the maximum amount that may be paid equates to 15% of the total funding advanced 
for bursaries.

The Tomorrow Trust
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20. Related parties (continued)

Royalties paid

B Feinberg    43 996  78 013

K Feinberg    54 300  79 399

    98 296  157 412

Royalties are paid on the sale of books in terms of an agreement entered into between the ex-CEO and her son (related parties) and the 
Trust. In terms of the agreement the trust will manage the printing and sale of the books that were written by the related parties and 
then a percentage of gross proceeds were to be paid over to the related parties.

Dividends received

Spirax Sarco Services South Africa Proprietary Limited    (386 175)  (1 029 800)

Donations received

Zenzar SA Proprietary Limited (note 3)    (657 864)  (438 322)
 

21. Going concern

The trustees have reviewed the Trust’s cash flow forecast for January 2021 to December 2021 and in light of this review and the current 
Covid-19 pandemic, they are satisfied that the trust has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence in the 
foreseeable future.

22. Events after the reporting period

In 2021 the CEO, James Donald, will step down to join a national Department of Basic Education initiative. The trustees have appointed 
transition and search committees, comprised of trustees and senior staff to manage the process.

Tomorrow Trust holds 100% of the shares of Malviprox Proprietary Limited; a dormant investment holding entity that acquired a 10% 
shareholding in a Special Purpose Entity (SPE) Clusten 16 (Pty) Ltd which in turn owns 25% in Zensar South Africa (Pty) Ltd. In March 2021 
Mavilprox agreed with the shareholders of Clusten to allow Zensar to exercise a buyback as part of ownership restructuring. The transaction 
is pending.

Other than the above, the trustees are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this 
report, not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, which significantly affect the financial position of the trust or the 
results of its operations at the date of this report.
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Detailed Income Statement

   2020  2019
  Note(s) R R

Revenue

Donations     12  24 495 124  20 568 977

Other income

Administration and management fees received    20  155 367  95 905

Book sales      153 056  382 820

Dividends received     15  386 175  1 029 800

Interest received     15  625 314  555 634

Insurance claim proceeds      7 999  -

      1 327 911  2 064 159

Expenses (Refer to page 102)      (21 166 531)  (21 119 667)

Surplus before taxation      4 656 504  1 513 469

Taxation     16  (77 235)  (205 960)

Total comprehensive income for the year     4 579 269  1 307 509

 
The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited
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   2020  2019
  Note(s) R R

Operating expenses

Accounting and secretarial fees      (66 025)  (29 900)

Advertising      (31 308)  (16 188)

Alumni - NSFAS      (8 608)  (94 598)

Audit fees      (138 000)  (116 009)

Bad debts      (10 761)  -

Bank charges      (15 638)  (12 875)

Cleaning      (46 692)  (15 000)

Computer expenses      (29 343)  (33 544)

Consulting and professional fees      (49 209)  (125 131)

Cost of books      (710 150)  (40 472)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments     (144 357)  (99 204)

Employee costs - Administration staff     (2 080 002)  (1 991 288)

Employee costs - Teachers program staff     (3 094 326)  (3 048 145)

Entertainment      -  (21 155)

Gifts       (2 115)  (3 036)

Insurance      (84 150)  (93 240)

Lease rentals on operating leases      (714 493)  (725 246)

Legal expenses      (1 035)  (50 944)

Postage and courier      (1 702)  (2 477)

Printing and stationery      (26 689)  (36 507)

Loss on exchange differences      (242)  -

Loss on sale of assets      (8 918)  (1 572)

Repairs and maintenance      -  (1 514)

Royalties     20  (98 296)  (157 412)

Security      (6 848)  (4 949)

Staff welfare      (27 547)  (17 387)

Student and learner accomodation     (3 039 928)  (2 610 971)

Student and learner education      (3 709 776)  (2 756 390)

Student and learner food and transport     (3 977 402)  (5 963 844)

Student and learner general expenses     (2 886 117)  (2 831 028)

Telephone and fax      (82 605)  (70 612)

Training      (7 975)  (75 966)

Travel - local      (22 146)  (21 145)

Travel - overseas      (44 128)  (51 918)

      (21 166 531)  (21 119 667)

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited
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